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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Roads and Maritime Services

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament
Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of Roads and Maritime Services (RMS), which
comprise the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year ended 30 June 2018, the Statement of
Financial Position as at 30 June 2018, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash
Flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a Statement of Significant Accounting Policies and
other explanatory information.

In my opinion, the financial statements:

. give a true and fair view of the financial position of RMS as at 30 June 2018, and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards

. are in accordance with section 41B of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PF&A Act) and
the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the
standards are described in the ‘Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of my report.

I am independent of RMS in accordance with the requirements of the:

. Australian Auditing Standards

. Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 ‘Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants’ (APES 110).

I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

Parliament promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of
New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

. providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an
Auditor-General

. mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies

. precluding the Auditor-General from providing non-audit services.

| believe the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
audit opinion.
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Other Information

Other information comprises the information included in RMS’s annual report for the year ended

30 June 2018, other than the financial statements and my Independent Auditor’'s Report thereon. The
Chief Executive of RMS is responsible for the other information. At the date of this Independent
Auditor’s Report, the other information | have received comprises the Statement by the Chief
Executive of Road and Maritime Services on the adoption of the financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2018.

My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information. Accordingly, | do not
express any form of assurance conclusion on the other information.

In connection with my audit of the financial statements, my responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated.

If, based on the work | have performed, | conclude there is a material misstatement of the other
information, | must report that fact.

I have nothing to report in this regard.

The Chief Executive’'s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Chief Executive is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the PF&A Act, and for such internal control
as the Chief Executive determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Chief Executive is responsible for assessing RMS'’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting except where RMS will be dissolved by an Act of Parliament or
otherwise cease operations.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

. obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
. issue an Independent Auditor’'s Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or
in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take
based on the financial statements.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing
and Assurance Standards Board website at: www.auasb.gov.au/auditors responsibilities/ar4.pdf. The
description forms part of my auditor’s report.



http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors_responsibilities/ar4.pdf

My opinion does not provide assurance:

. that RMS carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically

. about the assumptions used in formulating the budget figures disclosed in the financial
statements

. about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial
statements on any website where they may be presented

. about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.
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Weini Liao
Director, Financial Audit

14 September 2018
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Roads and Maritime Services
Statement by the Chief Executive
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Pursuant to Section 41C (1B) and (1C) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, we declare that in our opinion:

1. The accompanying financial statements and notes thereto exhibit a true and fair view of Roads and Maritime
Services financial position as at 30 June 2018 and financial performance for the year ended 30 June 2018

2. The statements have been prepared in accordance with the provisions of applicable Accounting Standards (which
include Australian Accounting Interpretations), the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983, the Public Finance and Audit
Regulation 2015, and the Financial Reporting Directions mandated by the Treasurer.

Further we are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars included in the financial statements to be
misleading or inaccurate.

Ken Kanofski Fiona Trussell
Chief Executive Chief Financial Officer

\‘{ September 2018 ,"I September 2018




Roads and Maritime Services
Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Actual Budget Actual
2018 2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
Expenses excluding losses
Operating expenses
- Personnel services expenses 2(a) 413,258 534,414 435,300
- Other operating expenses 2(b) 1,003,721 828,893 710,790
- Maintenance 2(c) 424,093 477,111 474,545
Depreciation and amortisation 2(d) 1,632,294 2,050,932 1,638,951
Grants and subsidies 2(e) 683,273 431,352 440,591
Finance costs 2(f) 25,635 27,308 36,172
Total expenses excluding losses 4,182,274 4,350,010 3,736,349
Revenue
Sale of goods and services 3(a) 690,683 569,156 631,347
Personnel service revenue 1,778 - 1,126
Investmentrevenue 3(b) 40,788 13,540 38,235
Retained taxes, fees and fines 3(c) 71,814 - 70,660
Operating grant received from Transportfor NSW (TfNSW) 3(d) 1,568,356 1,509,657 1,282,828
Capital grantreceived from TINSW 3(d) 4,304,181 6,393,662 4,264,278
Other grants and contributions 3(e) 1,021,716 131,134 116,557
Other income 3(f) 394,464 455,095 336,380
Total revenue 8,093,780 9,072,244 6,741,411
Gain/(losses) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 2,894 2,000 127,940
Other gains/(losses) 5 (594,960) (226,725) (633,613)
Net result 3,319,440 4,497,509 2,499,389
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to net result
L\‘Ist\elglﬂc;rt(iaoar;ssellj(rcip?g;ease) in property, plantand equipment 12 7 665,386 2681,203 929,538
Total other comprehensive income 7,665,386 2,681,203 929,538
Total comprehensive income 10,984,826 7,178,712 3,428,927

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.




Roads and Maritime Services
Statement of financial position
as at 30 June 2018

Actual Budget Actual
2018 2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8 886,839 618,551 748,652
Receivables 9 580,309 352,046 512,597
Inventories 4,762 6,341 5,676
Financial assets atfair value 10 111,565 102,439 104,857
Other financial assets (atamortised cost) 11 146,887 - -
1,730,362 1,079,377 1,371,782
Non-currentassets classified as Held for Sale 14 1,121 25,000 275
Total current assets 1,731,483 1,104,377 1,372,057
Non-current assets
Receivables 9 1,426,816 689,252 396,659
Other financial assets (atamortised cost) 11 222,992 377,662 390,532
Property plant& equipment
- Land and buildings 12(a) 3,660,886 3,906,814 3,630,252
- Plantand equipment 12(b) 105,371 89,020 110,389
- Infrastructure systems 12(c) 88,383,377 85,229,749 78,803,046
Total property, plant and equipment 92,149,634 89,225,583 82,543,687
Private sector provided infrastructure 13(a) 2,075,417 2,091,184 1,834,908
Intangible assets 13(b) 153,796 133,119 169,166
Total non-current assets 96,028,655 92,516,800 85,334,952
Total assets 97,760,138 93,621,177 86,707,009
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables 17 1,337,375 983,314 1,238,319
Borrowings 18 60,558 60,558 53,680
Provisions 19 16,500 7,338 7,108
Other 20 292,131 207,252 243,579
Total current liabilities 1,706,564 1,258,462 1,542,686
Non-current liabilities
Payables 17 9,160 7,106 15,092
Borrowings 18 244575 244575 305,133
Provisions 19 26,103 11,120 10,605
Other 20 634,617 641,182 652,121
Total non-current liabilities 914,455 903,983 982,951
Total liabilities 2,621,019 2,162,445 2,525,637
Net assets 95,139,119 91,458,732 84,181,372
EQUITY
Accumulated funds 75,493,532 76,734,346 72,146,225
Reserves 19,645,587 14,724,386 12,035,147
Total equity 95,139,119 91,458,732 84,181,372

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.




Roads and Maritime Services
Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Accumulated As;et .
funds revaluation Total equity
surplus

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 July 2017 72,146,225 12,035,147 84,181,372
Net result for the year 3,319,440 - 3,319,440
Other comprehensive income
l?/gllﬂ(;tieoar?sellj(?p?s;ease) in property, plantand equipment 1%2(:)‘ ) 7.665,386 7,665,386
Total other comprehensive income for the year - 7,665,386 7,665,386
Total comprehensive income for the year 3,319,440 7,665,386 10,984,826
Transfers within equity
Assetrevaluation reserve balance transferred to accumulated 54946 (54,946) }
funds on disposal ofassets
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Increase/(decrease) in netassets from equitytransfers 21 (27,079) - (27,079)
Balance at 30 June 2018 75,493,532 19,645,587 95,139,119
Balance at 1 July 2016 69,399,065 11,310,315 80,709,380
Net result for the year 2,499,389 - 2,499,389
Other comprehensive income
rNe(\a/;llTjgt?oar?sellj(rdp?S;eaSE) in property, plantand equipment 12 i 929,538 929,538
Total other comprehensive income for the year - 929,538 929,538
Total comprehensive income for the year 2,499,389 929,538 3,428,927
Transfers within equity
ﬁnsdestgenvg:gggcs)glrce)?:sr\éeegalance transferred to accumulated 204,706 (204,706) )
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners
Increase/(decrease) in netassets from equitytransfers 21 43,065 - 43,065
Balance at 30 June 2017 72,146,225 12,035,147 84,181,372

The accom panying notes form part of these financial statements.




Roads and Maritime Services
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2018

Actual Budget Actual
2018 2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Payments
Personnel services and employee related (387,476) (517,408) (463,527)
Grants and subsidies (483,910) (360,530) (399,912)
Finance costs (25,583) (27,308) (29,390)
Other (2,122,898) (2,419,647) (1,865,262)
Total payments (3,019,867) (3,324,893) (2,758,091)
Receipts
Sale of goods and services 790,675 668,664 799,865
Retained taxes, fees and fines 71,813 - 70,660
Interestreceived 9,509 3,008 5,363
Other grants and contributions 1,021,717 131,134 115,689
Other 584,392 868,191 498,650
Operating grants received from TINSW 1,568,357 1,509,657 1,282,828
Capital grants received from TINSW 4,226,614 6,232,544 4,176,127
Total receipts 8,273,077 9,413,198 6,949,182
Net cashflows from operating activities 25 5,253,210 6,088,305 4,191,091
Cash flows from investing activities
Proc_eedsfrom sale ofland and buildings, plantand equipment 114,949 109,192 110,986
and infrastructure systems
Purchases ofland and buildings, plantand equipmentand (5,212,584) (6,026,915) (4,124.251)
infrastructure systems
Other 45,000 35,000 -
Net cashflows from investing activities (5,052,635) (5,882,723) (4,013,265)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payment of finance lease liabilities 18 (53,680) (54,510) (47,117)
Net cash flows from financing activities (53,680) (54,510) (47,117)
Net increase/ (decrease)in cash 146,895 151,072 130,709
Opening cash and cash equivalents 8 748,652 469,970 617,943
Cash and cash equivalents transferred (out)/in as aresultof
administrative restructure 21 (8,708) ) )
Reclassification of cash equivalents - (2,491) -
Closing cash and cash equivalents 8 886,839 618,551 748,652

The Budget statement of cash flows was notreported to parliamentin 2017-18 Budget Paper No.3 and instead published online at

www.budget.nsw.gov.au

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.




Roads and Maritime Services
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

1.  Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Reporting entity

Roads and Maritime Services (RMS) is a NSW government entity and is controlled by the State of New South Wales, which
is the ultimate parent. RMS is a not-for-profit entity (as profit is not its principal objective) and it has no cash generating units.
The reporting entity is consolidated as part of the NSW Total State Sector Accounts.

The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 have been authorised for issue by the Chief Executive of RMS on
\X September 2018, the date when the accompanying statement under s.41C (1C) of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983
was signed.

(b) Basis of preparation

The RMS financial statements are general purpose financial statements which have been prepared on an accruals basis and
in accordance with:

e Applicable Australian Accounting Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations).

e the requirements of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 and Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015 and

e the Financial Reporting Directions mandated by the Treasurer.

Fair value
Property, plant and equipment, financial assets at ‘fair value through profit or loss’ and available for sale are measured at fair
value. Non-current assets held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Historical cost convention
Other financial statement items are prepared in accordance with the historical cost convention except where specified
otherwise.

Estimates

Judgements, key assumptions and estimates made by management about carrying values of assets and liabilities are
disclosed in the relevant notes to the financial statements. Refer to note 1(k) for a summary of critical accounting estimates,
judgements and assumptions determined when preparing the financial statements.

Rounding of amounts
Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are rounded to the nearest one thousand dollars ($°000) and are expressed in
Australian dollars.

(c) Statement of compliance

The financial statements and notes comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which include Australian Accounting
Interpretations.

(d) Accounting for the Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Income, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except that the:
e Amount of GST incurred by RMS as a purchaser that is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO)
is recognised as part of an asset’s cost of acquisition or as part of an item of expense.
e Receivables, payables, accruals and commitments are stated with the amount of GST included.
e Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. However, the GST components of cash
flows arising from investing and financing activities which is recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified
as operating cash flows.




Roads and Maritime Services
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
(e) Comparative information

Except when an Australian Accounting Standard permits or requires otherwise, comparative informationis presented in
respectof the previous period for allamounts reported in the financial statements.

(f) Changes in accounting policy, including new or revised Australian Accounting Standards

0] Effective for the first time in 2017-18

The accounting policies applied in 2017-18 are consistentwith those of the previous financial year except as a
resultof the following new or revised Australian Accounting Standards thathave been applied forthe firsttime in
2017-18. The impactof these Standards in the period of initial application is setoutbelow:

Standard Summary of key requirements of new/revised Impact on Reporting Entity’s 2017-18
standard financial statements

AASB 2016-2 The amendments to AASB 107 Statementof Cash An additional disclosure has beenincluded

Amendments to Flows are part of the IASB’s Disclosure Initiative and in Note 18 to detail the change in liabilities

Australian help users offinancial statements better understand arising from financing activities under the

Accounting changes in an entity’'s debt. The amendments require amended AASB 107.The disclosureiis

Standards — entities to provide disclosures aboutchangesin their limited to RMS’ finance lease liability.

Disclosure liabilities arising from financing activities, including both

Initiative: changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes

Amendmentsto (such as foreign exchange gains orlosses).

AASB 107

AASB 2016-7 This Standard amends the mandatoryeffective date The impactof this standard, as mandated

Amendmentsto (application date) of AASB 15 for not-for-profit entities by NSW Treasury s to defer the application

Australian sothat AASB 15is requiredto be applied by such date of AASB 15 for not-for-profit entities to

Accounting entities for annual reporting periods beginning on or annual reporting periods beginning on or

Standards— after 1 January 2019 instead of 1 January 2018. after 1 January 2019.

Deferral of AASB

15 for Not-for-Profit

Entities

Accordingly, RMS will apply AASB 15 from
1 July 2019.

(i) Issued but not yet effective

NSW public sector entities are not permitted to early adopt new Australian Accounting Standards, unless Treasury
determines otherwise.

The following new Australian Accounting Standards have not been applied, and are not yet effective and the
entity's assessmentofthe impactof these new standards in the period ofiinitial application is setoutbelow:

Standard Summary of key requirements/changes Applicable to | Expected Impact on
annual Reporting Entity’s financial
reporting statements on initial
periods application
beginning on
or after
AASB 9 Financial | AASB 9 introduces new requirements for the 1 January On initial application of AASB
Instruments classification, measurementand de-recognition 2018 9, all existing financial




Roads and Maritime Services
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Standard Summary of key requirements/changes Applicable to | Expected Impact on
annual Reporting Entity’s financial
reporting statements on initial
periods application
beginning on
or after
of financial assets and financial liabilities. instruments will need to be
classified according to the
AASB 9 replaces the existing four key category AASB 9 criteria and
approach to measurementatfterinitial recognition transitional requirements. RMS
to two categories —eitheramortised costor fair does nothave manycomplex
value. financial instruments.
Therefore, the impacton RMS’
accounting for financial assets
and liabilities is notexpected
to be significant.
AASB 15, AASB The purpose of AASB15 was to improve the 1 January RMS currently recognises
2014-5, AASB revenue recognition requirements, remove 2019 revenue arising from customer
2015-8,2016-3 inconsistencies and weaknesses in existing contracts as follows:
and AASB 2016-8 ) .
regarding sFandards, andim pr.ove com_parabllltyand — Saleof goods -when
Revenue from disclosure ofusefulinformation to readers of RMS transfers the
Contracts with financial statements. significantrisks and
Customers rewards of ownership
AASB 15 replaces AASB 118 Revenue, AASB of the assets.
111 Construction Contracts and some revenue- — Usercharges -when
related Interpretations establishing a new RMS obtains control
revenue recognition model, changing the basis of the assets that
for deciding whetherrevenueis to be recognised resultfrom them.
over time or at a pointin time; providing new and — Rendering ofservices
more detailed guidance on specific topics (e.g., - when the service is
multiple elementarrangements, variable pricing, provided or by
rights of return, warranties and licensing) and reference to the stage
expanding and improving disclosures about of completion.
revenue.
The initial application of this
In the Australian context, AASB 15 will applyto standard is notexpected to
contracts of not-for-profit (NFP) entities that are resultin significantchanges to
exchange transactions. AASB 1004 the RMS revenue recognition
Contributions will continue to applyto non- and additional note disclosure
exchange transactions until the Income from in the RMS financial
Transactions of NFP Entities Projectis statements.
completed.
AASB 2014-5incorporates the consequential
amendments to a number of Australian
Accounting Standards (including interpretations)
arising from the issuance of AASB 15.
AASB 16 Leases | AASB 16 introduces asingle lessee accounting | 1 January Measurementoflease liability
model and requires alesseetorecognise assets | 2019 under AASB 16 largely

and liabilities for all leases with a term of more

correspondsto the




Roads and Maritime Services
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

1. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Standard Summary of key requirements/changes Applicable to | Expected Impact on
annual Reporting Entity’s financial
reporting statements on initial
periods application
beginning on
or after
than 12 months, unlessthe underlying assetis of measurementofa finance
lowvalue. A lesseeis required to recognise a lease liabilityunder the current
right-of-use assetrepresentingits rightto use AASB 117. Underthat
the underlying leased assetand alease liability standard RMS recognisesan
representing its obligationsto make lease assetand liabilityrelating to
payments. AASB 16 substantiallycarries forward the Sydney Harbour Tunnel
the lessoraccounting requirementsin AASB 117 finance lease. AASB 16 will
Leases. Accordingly, a lessor continuesto have no impacton this
classifyits leases as operating leases orfinance accounting treatment.
leases, and to accountfor those two types of
leases differently. RMS currently accounts for the
use of fleet and property rental
as operating leasesin
accordance with AASB 117.
The initial application of AASB
16 will resultin RMS bringing
into accountthe right-to- use
assetand liabilityto represent
the lease paymentobligation
for its operating leases.
The quantitative impact of the
standard is notyet known.
AASB 1058 AASB 1058 clarifies and simplifies the income 1 January RMS currently recognises
Income of Not-for- | recognition requirements thatapply to not-for- 2019 grants and contributions

Profit Entities

profit (NFP) entities. Particularly when a NFP
entity:
- receives volunteer services, or
- acquires anassetwhere the
considerationis significantlyless than
the fair value of the asset, principallyto
enable the entity to further its
objectives.

Local governments, governmentdepartments,
general governmentsectors (GGSs) and whole
of governments are required to recognise
volunteer services ifthey would have been
purchased and the fair value of those services
can be measured reliably.

Upon initial recognition ofan asset, this
Standard requires the entity to consider whether
any otherfinancial statementelements (called
‘related amounts’) should be recognised, such

received from NSW
governmentagencies and
other bodies as income when
RMS obtains control over the
assets comprising the grants.
Control over grants is normally
obtained upon the receipt of
cash or whenthe rightto
receive the cash/assetarises.
RMS also accounts forany
assets vested between NSW
governmentagencies as
equity transfers.

The quantitative impactof the
standard is notyet known.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Standard Summary of key requirements/changes Applicable to | Expected Impact on
annual Reporting Entity’s financial
reporting statements on initial
periods application
beginning on
or after

as:

(a) contributions byowners;

(b) revenue, or a contract liabilityarising from a
contract with a customer;

(c) a lease liability;

(d) a financial instrument; or

(e) a provision.

These related amounts are accounted forin
accordance with the applicable Australian
Accounting Standard.

AASB 1059 AASB 1059 addressesthe accounting fora 1 January Currently, under TPP 06-8

Service . service concession arrangementbya grantor 2019 Accounting for Privately

Concession thatis a public sector entity by prescribing the Financed Projects, RMS

Arrangements: } ) .

Grantors accounting for the arrangementfrom the records anincreaseinan

grantor’s perspective.

It applies to arrangements thatinvolve an
operator providing public services related to a
service concession asseton behalfof a public
sectorgrantorfor a specified period oftime and
managing atleastsome ofthose services. An
arrangementwithin the scope ofthis Standard
typically involves an operator constructing the
assets usedto provide the public service or
upgrading the assets (forexample, by increasing
their capacity) and operating and maintaining the
assets foraspecified period oftime. Such
arrangements are often described as build-
operate-transfer or rehabilitate-operate-transfer
service concession arrangements or public-
private partnerships (PPPs).

The Standard requires the grantorto:

(a) recognise aservice concession asset
constructed, developed or acquired from a third
party by the operator,

(b) reclassifyan existing assetas a service
concession assetwhen itmeets the criteria for
recognition as a service concession asset;

(c) initially measure a service concession asset
constructed, developed or acquired by the
operator or reclassified bythe grantor at current
replacementcostin accordance with the cost
approach to fair value in AASB 13 and
subsequentlymeasure itin accordance with

emerging assetand revenue
until the end of the concession
period at which pointthe
assets revertback to RMS.

From 1 July 2019, under AASB
1059, RMS is required to
record the value of the assets
at currentreplacementcost
during the period of
construction along with a
corresponding liabilityto the
operator. Depreciation for the
assets will also be recognised
in RMS’ operating statement.
The value ofimpactto RMS’
financial statementsis being
determined priorto application
of this standard.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

Standard Summary of key requirements/changes Applicable to | Expected Impact on
annual Reporting Entity’s financial
reporting statements on initial
periods application
beginning on
or after

AASB 116 or AASB 138;
(d) recognise a corresponding liabilitymeasured
initiallyat the fair value

(g9) Personnel services income

Personnel Services Income represents the provision of RMS staff to TINSW to undertake work on behalfof Transport Shared
Services.

(h) Inventories held-for-distribution

Inventories consistmainlyof raw materials and supplies used for the construction and maintenance ofroads, bridges and
traffic signals.

Inventories held for distribution are initiallymeasured atcost, adjusted when applicable, for any loss of service potential. A
loss of service potential is identified and measured based on the existence of a currentreplacementcostthatis lower than
the carrying amount. Costis calculated using eitherthe weighted average costor “firstin first out” method.

The costof inventories acquired atno costor for nominal consideration is the currentreplacementcostas atthe date of
acquisition. Currentreplacementcostis the costthe agency would incurto acquire the asset. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course ofbusiness less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessaryto make the sale.

(i) Equity and reserves

(i) Asset revaluation reserve

The assetrevaluationreserve is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation of non-current
assets. This accords with the agency's policyon the revaluation of property, plantand equipmentas discussed in
Note 12 and 13(a).

(i) Accumulated Funds

The category of ‘Accumulated Funds’ includes all currentand prior period retained funds.

(i) Changes in accounting estimates

RMS has incorporated assetcondition assessmentin the 2018 valuation of road and bridge assets to determine their fair
value which has also extended the remaining useful lives ofthe assetcomponents. The external valuer engaged for the
comprehensive revaluation has considered obsolescence inits valuation approach and has incorporated asset conditions in
the revised valuation methodologyfor assets where condition data is available. The main drivers of this resultare the
incorporation ofthe assetcondition to determine the fair value, and certain methodologyrefinements from the previous
valuation methodology. In addition, the method for calculating depreciation has also changed from an age based straightline
method to an condition based straightline method.
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1. Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
The change in the useful life assumptionsis recognised as change in estimates and recognised prospectivelyin accordance
with AASB108: Accounting policies, Changesin Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Management's estimate is thatthis has resulted in a decrease ofroads and bridges depreciation expense of approximately
$46 million forthe year ended 30 June 2018 and expected depreciation in 2018-19 by approximately $235 million.

(k) Critical accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

In the application of accounting standards, managementis required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying values of assets and liabilities thatare not readilyapparentfrom other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various factors thatare believed to be reasonable underthe currentset
of circumstances. Actual results maydiffer from these estimates.

Managementevaluates these judgements, estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised ifthe revision affects only that period — or in the period of the

revision and future periods ifthe revision affects both current and future periods.

Significantjudgements, estimates and assumptions made bymanagementin the preparation ofthe financial statements are
outlined below:

Property, plantand equipment&

Intangible assets Note 12 and note 13(b)
Private sector provided infrastructure Note 13(a)
Non-currentassets held forsale Note 14

Provisions Note 19




Roads and Maritime Services
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2018

2.  Expensesexcluding losses

(@) Personnel services expenses

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Personnel services expenses comprise the following specificitems:
Salaries and wages (including annual leave) 326,344 350,832
Superannuation - defined benefitplans 8,179 7,180
Superannuation - defined contribution plans 28,029 27,541
Longservice leave 9,268 4,633
Payroll tax and fringe benefits tax 23,703 22,984
Redundancypayments 14,718 14,464
Workers'compensationinsurance 3,017 7,666
Personnel services expenses 413,258 435,300
Allocations of personnel service costs to programs:
- Capitalised to infrastructure 296,258 250,808
- Operating programs (including maintenance costs) 413,258 435,300
709,516 686,108

Note 12 details the nature of personnel services capitalised.

Included inthe above are personnel services expenses of $94.0 million (2017:$127.4 million) related to maintenance.




Roads and Maritime Services
Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 30 June 2018

2. Expensesexcluding losses (continued)

(b) Other operating expenses

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Auditor's remuneration - audit of financial statements 784 765
Advertising 3,271 5,026
Contract payments 144,030 84,027
Data processing 56,853 60,275
Contingentrent 1,036 2,422
Fleet hire and lease charges 31,190 18,360
Lease and property expenses 26,516 23,891
M5 Cashbackrefund 114,208 108,848
Office expenses 41,710 33,243
Payments to councils and external bodies 29,421 20,639
Special number plates concession fees 27,045 26,079
Sydney Harbour Tunnel operating fees 32,882 31,924
Travel, insurance and legal expenses 37,658 35,608
Consultants 2,237 1,621
Professional fees 141,309 145,176
Other 28,934 39,237
Share services charges 284,637 73,649
Other operating expenses 1,003,721 710,790

Recognition and Measurement

Share services charges
Shared services charges representservices provided by Service NSW and TINSW Shared Services to RMS. The charges
are recognised as incurred.

Insurance

RMS’ insurance activities are conducted through the NSW Treasury Managed Fund Scheme of self-insurance for
governmentagencies. The expense (premium)is determined bythe Fund Manager based on pastclaims experience.
Compulsorythird party insurance is with a private sector provider arranged by NSW Treasury.

RMS also arranges Principal Arranged Insurance (PAI) which provides cover for all parties involved in its construction
projects. The premium costis amortised on a straight-line basis over the term of the contract for all insurance policies.

Fleet hire and lease charges (Operating leases)
An operating lease is alease otherthan a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the
Statementof Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Professional fees (includes labour hire contractors)

Labour hire contractors employed through a labour hire agency are not classified as employees. There is no contractual
relationship between the governmententity and the individual in the arrangement. Consistentwith TPP 18-01 Accounting
Policy: Financial Reporting Code for NSW General Government Sector Entities, such arrangements are classified as Other
operating expenses. As a result, RMS has reclassified $28.9 million (2017: $31.6 million) in the currentyear from ‘skilled hire
contractors’in note 2(a) to ‘professional fees’ in note 2(b).
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Statement of cash flows
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2. Expensesexcluding losses (continued)

(c) Maintenance

2018 2017

Notes $'000 $'000

Maintenance expense in Statement of comprehensive income 424,093 474,545
Maintenance related to personnel services expenses 93,951 127,363
Total maintenance expenseincluding personnel services related 518,044 601,908
Maintenance grants to councils 312,927 290,807
Capitalised maintenance 745,351 601,945
Total maintenance program 1,576,322 1,494,660

Recognition and Measurement

Major reconstruction costs for road segments on State roads are capitalised and as such notcharged againstmaintenance
expenditure. RMS capitalised $745.4 million (2017:$601.9 million) of such works during the year.




Roads and Maritime Services
Statement of cash flows
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2. Expensesexcluding losses (continued)

(d) Depreciation and amortisation

2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000
Depreciation of operational and property assets 35,511 34,933
Depreciation of infrastructure assets 1,559,423 1,569,172
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 12 1,594,934 1,604,105
Amortisation ofintangible assets 13(b) 37,360 34,846
Depreciation and amortisation 1,632,294 1,638,951
Refer to Note 12, 13(b) and 15(b) for recognition and measurementpolicies on depreciation and amortisation.
(e) Grants and subsidies
2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000
Grants to councils 418,127 346,399
Roads and bridges transferred to councils 12(c) 199,364 40,678
Other grants and subsidies 23,082 10,814
Contribution to National Heavy Vehicle Regulator 42,700 42,700
Grants and subsidies 683,273 440,591

Recognition and Measurement

Grants and subsidies generallycomprise contributions in cash orkind to various local governmentauthorities and not-for-
profit communityorganisations. These contributions include transfers ofroads and bridges, cash grants for road maintenance
and the provision of transportservices. The grants and subsidies are expensed on the transfer of cash or assets. The
transferred assets are measured attheir fair value and transferred for nil consideration.

Of the $418.1 million (2017:$346.4 million) in Grants to Councils, RMS expensed $91.5 million in the year ended 30 June
2018 (2017:$78.1 million) on natural disaster restoration works from State funds, and $249.7 million in the year ended 30
June 2018 (2017: $298.8 million) on block grants and other maintenance grants to councils for regional and local roads.

(fy Hnance costs

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Finance lease interestcharges 25,452 29,168
M2 promissorynotes - 6,719
Other 183 285
Fnance costs 25,635 36,172

Recognition and Measurement

Finance costs are recognised as expensesinthe period in which they are incurred, in accordance with Treasury's Mandate
to not-for-profit NSW general governmentsector agencies. Theyinclude interestexpenses calculated using the effective
interestmethod as described in AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurements and the unwinding of

discountrate that is applied to provisions.
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Statement of cash flows
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3. Revenue

Recognition and Measurement

Income is measured atthe fair value of the consideration or contribution received orreceivable. Comments regarding the

accounting policies for the recognition of income are discussed below.

(a) Sale of goods and services

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Sale of goods
Number plates 148,628 140,445
Publications 9,115 9,499
Rendering of services
Advertising 17,357 16,281
Boat licenses 27,682 24,178
Boat registrations 24,934 26,541
Channel fees 8,986 8,580
Fees for services 116,705 119,986
Heawy vehicle permitfees 812 711
Miscellaneous services 12,854 18,669
Moorings 8,837 9,961
General maritime revenue 2,700 2,950
Rentalincome 59,313 55,350
Third party insurance data access charges 5,183 3,638
Toll and tag revenue 165,585 152,703
Works and services 81,992 41,855
Sale of goods and services 690,683 631,347

Recognition and Measurement

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recognised when RMS transfers the significantrisks and rewards of ownership ofthe

assets.Usercharges are recognised as revenue when RMS obtains control ofthe assets thatresultfrom them.

Rendering of services

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised when the service is provided or by reference to the stage of

completion.
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Statement of cash flows
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3.  Revenue (continued)

(b) Investment revenue

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Interest 18,548 15,575
Amortisation of zero interest Sydney Harbour Tunnel loan 10,532 9,862
TCorp InvestmentFacilities Designated at Fair Value Through Profit and Loss 6,708 7,339
M2 and Eastern Distributor promissorynotes 5,000 5,459
Investment revenue 40,788 38,235

Recognition and Measurement

Interestrevenue is recognised using the effective interestmethod. The effective interestrate method is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrumentor a shorter period, where

appropriate, to the net carrying amountof the financial asset.

(c) Retained taxes,fees and fines

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Sanction fees payable under the Fines Act 15,312 14,160
National Heavy Vehicle Regulator charges 56,502 56,500
Retained taxes,fees and fines 71,814 70,660

Recognition and Measurement
Retained taxes, fines and fees are recognised when cash is received.
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3.  Revenue (continued)

(d) Grants from Transport for NSW (TfNSW)

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Operating grant
Grantto fund general operations including maintenance 1,568,356 1,282,828
Capital grant
Grants to fund investmentin infrastructure network development* 4,304,181 4,264,278
Grants from Transport for NSW (TfNSW) 5,872,537 5,547,106

Recognition and Measurement

RMS receives capital and operating grants from TINSW instead ofreceiving budgetappropriations directlyfrom NSW
Treasury. RMS also receives grants and contributions from other NSW governmentagencies and other bodies as per note
3(e). These grants are generallyrecognised as income when RMS obtains control over the assets comprising the grants.
Control over grants is normallyobtained upon the receiptof cash or when the right to receive the cash arises.

Of the $4,304.2 million capital grantabove, $2,014.9 million relates to federal funding (2017: $1,608.6 million of $4,264.3

million). The equivalentfigure for the federal recurrentgrantis $198.9 million (2017:$168.3 million). Federal funding is
appropriated to TINSW through NSW Treasury.

(e) Other grants and contributions

2018 2017
$'000 $'000

NSW Government agencies
- TINSW* 894,800 8,066
- Other 116,524 87,215
Local government 2,026 2,229
Other governmentagencies - 10,011
Private firms and individuals 8,366 9,036
Other grants and contributions 1,021,716 116,557

Recognition and Measurement

Contributions received during the year ended 30 June 2018 were recognised as revenue during the period. Contributions are
recognised attheir fair value.

*RMS has reclassified Restart NSW capital grants received in the year ended 30 June 2018 of $889.7 million from Capital
grants received from TfNSW in note 3(d) to Other grants and contributions from TINSWin note 3(e), whilstthe amount
received inthe year ended 30 June 2017 of $603.1 million remains disclosed in note 3(d). This reclassification is dueto a
directive from NSW Treasuryand is effective prospectivelyfrom 1 July 2017.
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3.  Revenue (continued)

(fy Otherincome

2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000

Value of emerginginterestofPrivate Sector Provided Infrastructure (PSPI)
- M2 Motorway/M2 Widening 13(a) 40,318 38,285
- M4 Motorway Service Centre 13(a) 1,010 1,603
- M4 Motorway/M4 Widening 13(a) 7,060 -
- M5 South-West Motorway 13(a) 44,434 41,839
- Eastern Distributor 13(a) 22,269 20,898
- Cross CityTunnel 13(a) 30,832 29,230
- Westlink M7 Motorway 13(a) 66,705 63,162
- Lane Cove Tunnel 13(a) 40,709 38,395
Amortisation of deferred revenue on PSPI projects 19,030 19,030
Fuel tax credits - 515
Principal arranged insurance refund 25,407 1,530
Property revenue 1,294 2,822
Recognition ofinfrastructure assets 12(c) 49,345 34,014
Other boating fees 1,525 1,698
Resources received free of charge 26 27,036 22,980
Other (including professional services revenue) 17,490 20,379
Other income 394,464 336,380

Recognition and Measurement

Emerging interests in private sector provided infrastructure (PSPI) projects

The value of the emerging rightto receive a PSPI assetis treated as the compound value of an annuity that accumulates as
a series ofreceipts togetherwith a calculated notional compound interest. The discountrate used is the NSW Treasury
Corporation 10-year governmentbond rate at the commencementofthe concession period. The revenue recognitionis on a

progressive basis relative to the concession period.

Amortisation of deferredrevenue on PSPI Projects

Reimbursementofdevelopmentcosts in the form of upfront cash payments are treated as deferred revenue with an annual

amortisation amountrecognised on a straight-line basis over the life of the concession period.

Resourcesreceived free of charge

Resources received free of charge is recognised for personnel services assumed bythe Crown including long service leave

and defined benefitsuperannuation.
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4.  Gain/(loss) on disposal

2018 2017

Notes $'000 $'000
Net gain/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from sale 3,079 1,027
Carrying amountofassets sold 12 (2,825) (7,760)
Net gain/(loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment 254 (6,733)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of intangible assets
Carrying amountofassets disposed 13(b) (437) (271)
Net gain/(loss) on disposal of intangible assets (437) (271)
Net gain / (loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment and Intangibles (183) (7,004)
Net gain/(loss) on sale of non-current assets held for sale
Proceeds from sales 23,767 361,541
Carrying amountofassets sold 14 (20,690) (226,597)
Net gain/(loss) on sale of non-current assets held for sale 3,077 134,944
Net gain/(loss) on disposal 2,894 127,940
5.  Other gains/(losses)

2018 2017

Notes $'000 $'000
Allowance for impairmentofreceivables 9 (6,769) (3,552)
Carrying amountofInfrastructure assets written off 6 (198,593) (262,709)
Net revaluation increment/(decrement) recognised in netresult 6 (389,598) (367,352)
Other gains/(losses) (594,960) (633,613)

Recognition and Measurement

Gains and lossesinclude gains and losses on disposals and fair value adjustments to physical and financial assets, and
financial liabilities. Other gains and losses disclosed are those recognised in the net resultarising from property, plantand
equipmentrevaluations, write down of inventories, gain/lossresulting from financial assets and liabilities and reversal of

unused provisions.

In regards to infrastructure assets written off, in cases where RMS constructs a new infrastructure assetthat substantially
replaces an existing asset (rather than performing work to maintain the existing asset), the capitalised value ofthe original
assetis written off and the new assetis included within the additions to infrastructure assets (Note 12(c)).
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6.  Write-off/down of land & buildings and infrastructure assets

2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000
. . 5and
Carrying amount of Infrastructure assets written off 12(c) 198,593 262,709
The following infrastructure assets were written offin the periods ended 30 June 2018 and 30 June 2017:

Replacement Accumulated Carrying Replacement Accumulated Carrying
costs  depreciation value costs  depreciation value
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2018 2018 2018 2017 2017 2017

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Roads 159,203 (62,640) 96,563 322,721 (203,942) 118,779
Bridges 31,795 (18,348) 13,447 9,941 (5,232) 4,709
Maritime assets 2,373 (1,105) 1,268 3,410 (2,293) 1,117
Work in progress 82,613 - 82,613 134,654 - 134,654
Traffic signals network 901 (689) 212 205 (129) 76
Traffic controls network 14,928 (10,438) 4,490 16,105 (12,731) 3,374
infrastructure assets written 291,813 (93,220) 198,593 487,036 (224,327) 262,709
2018 2017

Notes $'000 $'000

Net revaluation increment/(decrement) recognised in net result 5 (389,598) (367,352)

The following land & buildings and infrastructure assets were written down and/ or written back through the netresultin the

year ended 30 June 2018:

Carrying Carrying

value value

2018 2017

Notes $'000 $'000

Traffic signals network 1,470 733
Infrastructure systems 12(c) 1,470 733
Land and buildings acquired for future roadworks (391,068) (368,085)
Land & buildings 12(a) (391,068) (368,085)
Land & buildings and infrastructure assets (written down)/written back (389,598) (367,352)
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7. Program Group Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018

Roads and Maritime Services expenses and income

Asset Maintenance Services & Operations Growth & Improvement Not attributable Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Expenses excluding losses
Operating expenses
- Personnel services expenses 92,702 126,540 294,996 286,298 25,560 22,462 413,258 435,300
- Other operating expenses 53,365 80,842 876,167 590,055 74,189 39,893 1,003,721 710,790
- Maintenance 326,373 403,882 97,041 70,226 679 437 424,093 474,545
Depreciation and amortisation - - 1,632,294 1,638,951 - - 1,632,294 1,638,951
Grants and subsidies 312,894 236,017 303,380 110,198 66,999 94,376 683,273 440,591
Finance costs - - 25,635 36,172 - - 25,635 36,172
Total expenses excluding losses 785,334 847,281 3,229,513 2,731,900 167,427 157,168 4,182,274 3,736,349
Revenue
Sale of goods and services 26,033 21,487 655,864 593,037 8,786 16,823 690,683 631,347
Personnel service revenue - - 1,778 1,126 - - 1,778 1,126
Inv estment rev enue - - 40,788 38,235 - - 40,788 38,235
Retained taxes, fees and fines 56,501 56,500 15,313 14,160 - - 71,814 70,660
8‘:2@3\;‘)" grant receiv ed from Transport for NSW 484,566 503,831 980,485 685,537 103,305 93,460 1,568,356 1,282,828
Capital grant received from TFNSW 638,650 583,993 119,752 126,437 3,545,779 3,553,848 4,304,181 4,264,278
Other grants and contributions 150,733 27,616 34,112 82,763 836,871 6,178 1,021,716 116,557
Other revenue 11,389 13,487 379,741 316,378 3,334 6,515 394,464 336,380
Total revenue 1,367,872 1,206,914 2,227,833 1,857,673 4,498,075 3,676,824 8,093,780 6,741,411
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment - - 2,894 102,560 - 25,380 2,894 127,940
Other gains/(losses) - - (594,960) (633,613) - - (594,960) (633,613)
Net result 582,538 359,633  (1,593,746) (1,405,280) 4,330,648 3,545,036 3,319,440 2,499,389
Other comprehensive income
Net increase/(decrease) in asset rev aluation reserve - - 7,665,386 929,538 - - 7,665,386 929,538
Total other comprehensiveincome for the year - - 7,665,386 929,538 - - 7,665,386 929,538
Total comprehensiveincome 582,538 359,633 6,071,640 (475,742) 4,330,648 3,545,036 10,984,826 3,428,927
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7.  Program Group Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 (continued)

Administered expenses and income

Asset Maintenance Services & Operations Growth & Improvement Not attributable Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Administered expenses
Other - - - - - - - - - -
Transfer pay ments - - - - - - - - - -
Administered expenses - - - - - - - - - -
Administered income
Transfer receipts - - - - - - 3,668,529 3,564,978 3,710,207 3,564,978
Administered income - - - - - - 3,668,529 3,564,978 3,710,207 3,564,978
Administered income less expenses - - - - - - 3,668,529 3,564,978 3,710,207 3,564,978

Administered assets and liabilities aredisclosed in Note 28.
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7.  Program Group Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 (continued)

Roads and Maritime Services assets and liabilities

Asset Maintenance Services & Operations Growth & Improvement Not attributable Total

2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents - - 886,839 748,652 - - - - 886,839 748,652
Receivables 21,873 17,446 551,054 481,492 7,382 13,659 - - 580,309 512,597
Inv entories - - 4,762 5,676 - - - - 4,762 5,676
Financial assets at fair value - - 111,565 104,857 - - - - 111,565 104,857
Other financial assets - - 146,887 - - - - - 146,887 -
Non-current assets classified as held for sale - - 1,121 275 - - - - 1,121 275
Total current assets 21,873 17,446 1,702,228 1,340,952 7,382 13,659 - - 1,731,483 1,372,057
Non-current assets
Receivables - - 104,587 158,558 1,322,229 238,101 - - 1,426,816 396,659
Other financial assets - - 222,992 390,532 - - - - 222,992 390,532
Property, plant and equipment
- Land and buildings - - 3,660,886 3,630,252 - - - - 3,660,886 3,630,252
- Plant and equipment - - 105,371 110,389 - - - - 105,371 110,389
- Infrastructure sy stem - - 81,222,312 73,065,567 7,161,065 5,737,479 - - 88,383,377 78,803,046
Property, plantand equipment - - 84,988,569 76,806,208 7,161,065 5,737,479 - - 92,149,634 82,543,687
Priv ate sector provided infrastructure - - 2,075,417 1,834,908 - - - - 2,075,417 1,834,908
Intangible assets - - 153,796 169,166 - - - - 153,796 169,166
Total non-current assets - - 87,545,361 79,359,372 8,483,294 5,975,580 - - 96,028,655 85,334,952
Total assets 21,873 17,446 89,247,589 80,700,324 8,490,676 5,989,239 - - 97,760,138 86,707,009
LIABILITIES
Currentliabilities
Pay ables 137,861 224,070 1,105,369 946,876 94,145 67,373 - - 1,337,375 1,238,319
Borrowings - - 60,558 53,680 - - - - 60,558 53,680
Provisions 876 2,066 14,404 4,675 1,220 367 - - 16,500 7,108
Other 15,532 27,704 255,008 202,204 21,591 13,671 = - 292,131 243,579
Total currentliabilities 154,269 253,840 1,435,339 1,207,435 116,956 81,411 - - 1,706,564 1,542,686
Non-current liabilities
Pay ables 944 2,731 7,571 11,540 645 821 - - 9,160 15,092
Borrowings - - 244,575 305,133 - - - - 244,575 305,133
Provisions 1,388 3,083 22,786 6,975 1,929 547 - - 26,103 10,605
Other 33,741 74,169 553,969 541,352 46,907 36,600 - - 634,617 652,121
Total non-currentliabilities 36,073 79,983 828,901 865,000 49,481 37,968 - - 914,455 982,951
Total liabilities 190,342 333,823 2,264,240 2,072,435 166,437 119,379 - - 2,621,019 2,525,637
Net assets (168,469) (316,377) 86,983,349 78,627,889 8,324,239 5,869,860 - - 95,139,119 84,181,372
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7. Program Group Statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 (continued)
Program Group Descriptions

(@) Roads, maritime and freight asset maintenance
This program group includes maintenance ofroad and maritime infrastructure and assets.

The primaryoutcomes ofthis program group are to ensure the State’s road and maritime assets:

* meetrequired safety, performance and operational standards in the delivery of customer services and access for regional
communities

» enable safe, efficientand reliable services for passengers and freightcustomers.

(b) Roads, maritime and freight services and operations

The primarypurpose ofthis program group is to enable the safe, efficientand reliable movementofpeople and goods by
various transportmodes across the State’s road and maritime networks.

Activities in this program group include:

« delivering solutions to maximise the efficiency of the existing road, freight rail and waterway networks
« providing supportto ensure motorists, vehicles and vessels are safe and compliant

« implementing road, maritime and freightpolicies and regulation

« delivering ongoing network operationsto allow for the efficientmovementof people and goods

* managing incidentresponse, and traffic and waterways for major projects

« planning required for journeymanagementand assetmaintenance activities

(c) Roads, maritime and freight growth and improvement

This program group includes developing and delivering new or upgraded road and maritime infrastructure to optimise the
safety, efficiency and effectiveness of the road and maritime networks.

Activities in this program group include:

« delivering new road, maritime and freightinfrastructure

« delivering enhancements to road, maritime and freightinfrastructure
« replacing or rebuilding road, maritime and freightinfrastructure
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8.  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents recognised in the Statementof Financial Position comprise cash on hand, cash atbank and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months orless, which are subjectto an insignificantrisk of changes in value and
includes other at-call deposits thatare not quoted in an active market. These are considered to have an insignificantrisk of
changes invalue.

In accordance with AASB139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, cash and cash equivalents are
measured atfair value with interestrevenue accrued as earned such that fair value is reflected at no less than the amount
payable on demand.

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
RMS operating account** 777,181 614,087
Remitting account, cashin transitand cash on hand* 5,728 27,158
On call deposits** 56,427 55,185
Other** 47,503 52,222
Cash and cash equivalents 886,839 748,652

*The remitting accountbalance above does notinclude cash of $38.0 million (2017: $33.7 million) relating to administered
revenue held by RMS as at 30 June 2018 (refer to Note 28).
** The cash accountbalances include restricted cash (refer to Note 16).

Cash and cash equivalentassets recognised in the statementoffinancial positionis reconciled atthe end of the financial
year to the statementofcash flows as follows:

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents (per statementoffinancial position) 886,839 748,652
Closing cash and cash equivalents (per statement of cashflows) 886,839 748,652

For the purposes ofthe statementof cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash atbank, cash on hand and on call
deposits.

Details regarding creditrisk, liquidityrisk and marketrisk arising from financial instruments are disclosed in note 30.
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9. Receivables

2018 2017

Notes $'000 $'000
(i) Current receivables
Sale of goods and services 40,196 32,919
Other receivables 122,123 105,239
Less: Allowance forimpairment* (9,944) (10,010)
Receivables 152,375 128,148
Goods and services tax receivable 146,046 121,908
Goods and Services Tax 146,046 121,908
Prepayments 157,715 132,568
Property and other debtors 16,716 20,864
Prepayments Motorways 11,427 -
Other 185,858 153,432
Accrued interest 451 2,578
Property sales 86,699 93,024
Accrued other income 8,880 13,507
Accrued Income 96,030 109,109
Current receivables 580,309 512,597
Movement in the allowance for impairment:
Balance at 1 July 10,010 6,442
Increase in allowance recognised in Statementof Comprehensive Income 5 6,769 3,552
Amounts written (off)/back during the period (6,835) 16
Balance at 30 June 9,944 10,010
(ii) Non-current receivables
Prepayments Motorways” 1,322,229 238,101
Property Sales 81,068 158,558
Prepayments 23,519 -
Non-current receivables 1,426,816 396,659

*The allow ance forimpairment primarily relates to amounts ow ing as a result of commercial transactions (e.g. debts raised for performance

of services or sale of goods) and tenants w ho vacate rental premises w ithout notice whilstin arrears.
"Prepayment Motorw aysrepresents RMS' contribution in cash and in kind for various Private Sector Provided Infrastructure projects.

Details regarding creditrisk, liquidityrisk and marketrisk arising from financial instruments are disclosed in note 30.

Recognition and Measurement

Receivables including trade receivables, prepayments, etc, are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an active market.

Receivables are recognised initiallyatfair value, plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequentmeasurementis
atamortised costusing the effective interestmethod, less anyimpairment. Changes are recognised in the net resultfor the

year when impaired, derecognised or through the amortisation process.

Short-term receivables with no stated interestrate are measured atthe original invoice amountwhere the effect of

discounting is immaterial.
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9. Receivables (continued)

Impairment

Receivables are subjectto an annual review for impairment. An allowance forimpairmentis established when there is
objective evidence that the entity will not be able to collectallamounts due. Further details onthe process for determining
the impairmentprovision on trade debtors is provided at Note 30(d)(ii). The amountof the impairmentloss is recognised in
the net resultfor the year.

Any reversals ofimpairmentlosses are reversed through the net resultfor the year, where there is objective evidence.

Reversals ofimpairmentlosses offinancial assets carried atamortised costcannotresultin a carrying amountthat exceeds
what the carrying amountwould have been had there not been an impairmentloss.

10. Financial assets at fair value

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
TCorp Hour-Glass InvestmentFacilities - long-term growth facility 35,002 31,920
TCorp Hour-Glass Investment Facilities - medium-term growth facility 76,563 72,937
Fnancial assets at fair value through profit or loss 111,565 104,857

Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets atfair value through profit and loss include financial assets held for trading and financial assets designated
upon initial recognition atfair value through profit and loss. Financial assets atfair value through profit and loss are initially
and subsequentlymeasured atfair value. Gains or losseson these assets are recognised in the net resultfor the year.
Financial assets are classified as “held fortrading” if they are acquired for the purpose ofsellinginthe near term.

The NSW Treasury Corporation (TCorp) Hour-Glass Investment Facilities are designated atfair value through profit and loss
as these financial assets are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk managementstrategy, and information aboutthese assetsis provided internallyon that basis to the key
managementpersonnel.

The movementin the fair value of the NSW TCorp Hour-Glass Investment Facilities incorporates distributions received as
well as unrealised movements in fair value and is reported in the line item ‘investmentrevenue’ at note 3(b).

Details regarding creditrisk, liquidityrisk and marketrisk arising from financial instruments are disclosed in note 30.
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11. Other financial assets

2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000
(i) Current other financial assets
Lane Cove Tunnel concession paymentrecoverable 13(a) 146,887 -
Current other financial assets 146,887 -
(i) Non-current other financial assets
Loanto Sydney Harbour Tunnel Company 165,519 154,987
Lane Cove Tunnel concession paymentsrecoverable 13(a) - 183,072
M2 and Eastern distributor operators Promissorynotes 13(a) 57,473 52,473
Non-current other financial assets 222,992 390,532

Recognition and Measurement

Loans, promissorynotes and other recoverable amounts are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. These financial assets are recognised initiallyat fair value. Subsequent
measurementis atamortised costusing the effective interestmethod, less an allowance forany impairmentwhere
applicable. Changesare recognised in the Statementof Comprehensive Income in the year impaired, derecognised or
through the amortisation process.

Details regarding creditrisk, liquidityrisk and marketrisk arising from financial instruments are disclosed in note 30.

Impairment

An allowance forimpairmentis established when there is objective evidence that, as a resultof one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, the estimated future cash flows have been affected.

RMS first assesses whetherimpairmentexists individuallyfor other financial assets thatare individuallysignificant, or
collectively for those that are not individuallysignificant. Further, other financial assets are assessed forimpairmenton a
collective basis ifthey were assessed notto be impaired individually.

For financial assets carried atamortised cost, the amount of the allowance is the difference between the asset's carrying
amountand the presentvalue of estimated future cash flows, discounted atthe effective interestrate. The amountofthe
impairmentlossis recognised in the net resultfor the year.

Any reversals ofimpairmentlosses are reversed through the net resultfor the year, where the decrease inimpairmentlosses
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairmentwas recognised. Reversals ofimpairmentlosses of
financial assets carried atamortised costcannotresultin a carrying amountthat exceeds whatthe carrying amountwould
have been had there not been animpairmentloss.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

Land and

Plant and

Infrastructure

buildings equipment systems TOTAL
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

As at 1 July 2017 - fair value
Gross carrying amount 3,757,777 256,352 114,805,197 118,819,326
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (127,525) (145,963) (36,002,151) (36,275,639)
Net carrying amount 3,630,252 110,389 78,803,046 82,543,687
As at 30 June 2018 - fair value
Gross carrying amount 3,806,139 250,483 115,297,957 119,354,579
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (145,253) (145,112) (26,914,580) (27,204,945)
Net carrying amount 3,660,886 105,371 88,383,377 92,149,634
As at 1 July 2016 - fair value
Gross carrying amount 3,568,643 269,061 110,787,021 114,624,725
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (104,747) (159,770) (34,826,268) (35,090,785)
Net carrying amount 3,463,896 109,291 75,960,753 79,533,940
At 30 June 2017 - fair value
Gross carrying amount 3,757,777 256,352 114,805,197 118,819,326
Accumulated depreciation and impairment (127,525) (145,963) (36,002,151) (36,275,639)
Net carrying amount 3,630,252 110,389 78,803,046 82,543,687

A reconciliation ofthe carrying amountof each class of property, plantand equipmentatthe beginning and end ofthe current

reporting period is setout below:

Year ended 30 June 2018
Reconciliation
buildings cqupment | systems  TOTAL
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net carrying amountat startof year 3,630,252 110,389 78,803,046 82,543,687
Additions 525,374 14,761 4,264,486 4,804,621
Assets recognised for the firsttime 3(f) - - 49,345 49,345
L\Ieecggarﬂggtilr?ganucisments less revaluation decrements (10,493) ) 7675879 7,665,386
Il}é%torgr\]/gggtilr?rr]]g;(;éir&?nts less revaluation decrements 6 (391,068) ) 1,470 (389,598)
Disposals 4 (504) (2,321) - (2,825)
Assetwrite-off 6 - - (198,593) (198,593)
Transfer (to)/from non-currentassets held for sale (21,475) (286) - (21,761)
Reclassification between PPE classes (513) 529 (16) -
Reclassification between land and building classes - - - -
Transfer to infrastructure (46,959) - 46,959 -
Reclassifications (to)/from intangible assets 13(b) - (375) (3,015) (3,390)
Reclassifications (to)/from other assets 12,828 - (497,397) (484,569)
Depreciation expense 2(d) (18,185) (17,326) (1,559,423) (1,594,934)
Assets transferred in/(out) through equity 21 (18,371) - - (18,371)
Transferto councils 2(e) - - (199,364) (199,364)
Net carrying amount at year end 3,660,886 105,371 88,383,377 92,149,634




Roads and Maritime Services
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

A reconciliation ofthe carrying amountof each class of property, plantand equipmentatthe beginning and end ofthe prior

reporting period is setout below:

Year ended 30 June 2017
Reconciliation

ond e e tora
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net carrying amountat startof year 3,463,896 109,291 75,960,753 79,533,940
Additions 491,593 8,750 3,813,028 4,313,371
Assets recognised for the firsttime 3( - - 34,014 34,014
Net revaluation increments less revaluation decrements 44,082 ) 885,456 929,538
recognised in equity
rNe?:tcnrgrﬁggtilr?rrlulant%iTI?mS less revaluation decrements 6 (368,085) i 733 (367.352)
Disposals (154) (7,606) - (7,760)
Assetwrite-off - - (262,709) (262,709)
Transfer (to)/from non-currentassets held forsale 2,303 - - 2,303
Reclassification between PPE classes 355 23,486 (23,841) -
Reclassification between land and building classes - - - -
Transferto infrastructure (30,523) - 30,523 -
Reclassifications (to)/from intangible assets 13(b) - (4,879) (25,930) (30,809)
Depreciation expense 2(d) (16,280) (18,653) (1,569,172) (1,604,105)
Assets transferred in/(out) through equity 21 43,065 - - 43,065
Transferto councils 2(e) - - (40,678) (40,678)
Transferfrom councils - - 869 869
Net carrying amount at end of year 3,630,252 110,389 78,803,046 82,543,687

Further details regarding the fair value measurementof property, plantand equipmentare disclosed in Note 15.
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(@) Land and buildings
Year ended 30 June 2018
Reconciliation

Land and

Land* Admini.str.ative acqtzjl#Igcljnf%Sr . Leasehold TOTAL
Buildings* future improvements

roadworks**
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net carrying amountat startof year 295,410 174,780 3,128,542 31,520 3,630,252
Additions - 15,354 507,455 2,565 525,374
Net revaluation increments less revaluation decrements recognised in equity 9,088 (19,581) - - (10,493)
rNe(;turlefvaluation increments less revaluation decrements recognised in net 6 i i (391,068) i (391,068)
Disposals (89) (209) - (206) (504)
Transfer (to)/from non-currentassets held for sale - - (21,475) - (21,475)
Reclassification between PPE classes - (304) - (209) (513)
Reclassification between land and building classes (2,246) (1,944) 2,246 1,944 -
Transferto infrastructure 12(c) - - (46,959) - (46,959)
Reclassifications (to)/from other assets 13(a) - - 12,828 - 12,828
Depreciation expense - (8,702) - (9,483) (18,185)
Assets transferred in/(out) through equity 21 (1,589) (1,492) (15,290) - (18,371)
Net carrying amount at end of year 300,574 157,902 3,176,279 26,131 3,660,886

* Administrative Land and Buildings w ere revalued during 2017-18 resulting in a net asset revaluation decrement of $10.5 million (2017: $44.1 million increment), recognised through equity. In 2017 the

increment w as recorded against asset revaluation reserve.

** In 2017-18, Land Acquired for Future Road Works (LAFFRW) w as revalued resulting in an increase in the asset revaluation reserve of approximately $198.7 million (2017: $179.8 million). This increase has
been offset with revaluation decrements arising fromthe transfers of LAFFRW to infrastructure. Total net revaluation decrement of $391.1million (2017: $368.1 million decrement) has been recognised in the net

result.
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(@) Land and buildings (cont’d)

Year ended 30 June 2017
Reconciliation

Land and

Land* AdmL“i_S”.a“"e acqbulf:gclinf%sr . Leasehold TOTAL
uildings* future improvements

roadworks**
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net carrying amountat startof year 234,047 166,701 3,033,597 29,551 3,463,896
Additions - 15,670 472,899 3,024 491,593
Net revaluation increments less revaluation decrements recognised in equity 30,869 13,213 - - 44,082
rNeesturlcivaluation increments less revaluation decrements recognised in net 6 ) ) (368,085) ) (368,085)
Disposals - ?3) - (151) (154)
Transfer (to)/from non-currentassets held forsale (6,098) - 8,401 - 2,303
Reclassification between PPE classes - Q) Q) 357 355
Reclassification between land and building classes 36,752 (17,134) (25,654) 6,036 -
Transferto infrastructure 12(c) - 7,529 (38,052) - (30,523)
Depreciation expense - (8,983) - (7,297) (16,280)
Assets transferred in/(out) through equity 21 (160) (2,212) 45,437 - 43,065
Net carrying amount at end of year 295,410 174,780 3,128,542 31,520 3,630,252
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)
(b) Plant and equipment

Year ended 30 June 2018
Reconciliation

Plant equipment Computer Electronic office

and motor hardware equipment TOTAL
vehicles

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Net carrying amountat startof year 101,046 8,322 1,021 110,389

Additions 14,739 6 16 14,761

Disposals (2,321) - - (2,321)

Transfer (to)/from non-currentassets held forsale (286) - - (286)

Reclassification between PPE classes 594 (65) - 529

Reclassifications (to)/from intangible assets 13(b) (375) - - (375)

Depreciation expense (12,180) (4,996) (150) (17,326)

Net carrying amount at end of year 101,217 3,267 887 105,371
Year ended 30 June 2017

Reconciliation
Plant Zﬂg'%ﬂ?g: (r.]“,omputer Hectroniq office TOTAL
vehicles ardware equipment

Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Net carrying amountat startof year 86,557 21,553 1,181 109,291

Additions 5,627 3,111 12 8,750

Disposals (3,964) (3,622) (20) (7,606)

Reclassification between PPE classes 24,637 (1,151) - 23,486

Reclassifications (to)/from intangible assets 13(b) 494 (5,373) - (4,879)

Depreciation expense (12,305) (6,196) (152) (18,653)

Net carrying amount at end of year 101,046 8,322 1,021 110,389
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

(c) Infrastructure systems
Year ended 30 June 2018

Reconciliation

Land _ Sydney 'I_'raffic Traffic Maritime Maj(_)r
Roads under Bridges  Harbour signals  controls works in TOTAL

roads Tunnel network network assets progress
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net carrying amountat startof year 53,735,359 2,176,261 15,351,566 942,684 120,500 166,249 572,948 5,737,479 78,803,046
Additions 486,397 - 109,195 - 3,934 12,550 - 3,652,410 4,264,486
Assets recognised for the firsttime 3(f) 18,697 - 25,346 - - - - 5,302 49,345
Netrevaluation increments less revaluation decrements 7576,114 (413642) 301,184 13,128 - 2,130 196,965 - 7675879

recognised in equity

ligrgrﬁggtilr??]g;?gesr&?nts less revaluation decrements 6 ) ) . ) 1,470 ) . ) 1,470
Assetwrite-off (96,563) - (13,447) - (212) (4,490) (1,268) (82,613) (198,593)
Reclassification between PPE classes 1,665,714 - 378,702 - - - 44110 (2,088,542) (26)
Transferfrom land and buildings 12(a) - 46,959 - - - - - - 46,959
Reclassifications (to)/from intangible assets 13(b) - - - - - - - (3,015) (3,015)
Reclassifications (to)/from other assets (94,530) - (340,875) - - (2,036) - (59,956) (497,397)
Depreciation expense 2(d) (1,292,328) - (202,758) (15,529) (21,664) (15,106) (12,038) - (1,559,423)
Transferto councils 2(e) (180,103) (1,607) (17,654) - - - - - (199,364)
Net carrying amount at end of year 61,818,757 1,807,971 15591,259 940,283 104,028 159,297 800,717 7,161,065 88,383,377

RMS has a Finance Lease agreement w ith Sydney Harbour Tunnel Company Limited (SHTC) in regards to the Sydney Harbour Tunnel. The agreement transfers ownership of the tunnelto RMS at the end of the
lease term in 2022 (see Note 22(c) for further details). At 30 June 2018 the net carrying amount of this leased infrastructure assets was $940.3 million (2017: $942.7 million).

Comprehensive and interim revaluations have been performed for infrastructure assets with further details provided below .
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Year ended 30 June 2017
Reconciliation

Land _ Sydney '_rraffic Traffic Maritime Majc_)r
Roads under Bridges  Harbour signals  controls works in TOTAL
roads Tunnel network network assets progress
Notes $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Net carrying amountat start of year 52,974,065 1,957,927 14,965,069 952,578 137,034 153,833 552,841 4,267,406 75,960,753
Additions 687,560 - 210,199 - 4,200 29,993 - 2,881,076 3,813,028
Assets recognised forthe firsttime 3() 21,420 - 12,594 - - - - - 34,014
Net revgluat_ion inc_rements less revaluation decrements 588,732 180,406 94.375 5364 i 807 15772 i 885,456
recognised in equity
Net rev.aluat.lon increments less revaluation decrements 6 ) ) ) ) 733 ) . ) 733
recognisedin netresult
Assetwrite-off (118,779) - (4,709) - (76) (3,374) (1,117) (134,654) (262,709)
Reclassification between PPE classes 920,736 - 281,485 - - - 16,760 (1,242,822) (23,841)
Transferfrom land and buildings 12(a) - 38,052 - - - - 68 (7,597) 30,523
Reclassifications (to)/from intangible assets 13(b) - - - - - - - (25,930) (25,930)
Depreciation expense 2(d) (1,304,913) - (201,224)  (15,258) (21,391) (15,010) (11,376) - (1,569,172)
Transferto councils 2(e) (34,308) (247) (6,223) - - - - - (40,678)
Transferfrom councils 846 23 - - - - - - 869
Net carrying amount at end of year 53,735,359 2,176,261 15,351,566 942,684 120,500 166,249 572,948 5,737,479 78,803,046
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12. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Recognition and Measurement

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment

Property, plantand equipmentacquired are initiallyrecognised atcostand subsequentlyrevalued at fair value less
accumulated depreciation. Costis the amountofcash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the other consideration
given to acquire the assetat the time of its acquisition or construction or, where applicable, the amountattributed to that

assetwheninitiallyrecognised in accordance with the requirements of other Australian Accounting Standards.

The costof assets constructed forown use includes the costof materials and directlabour, as well as an appropriate
proportion of variable and fixed overhead costs thatcan be reliablyattributed to the assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assetin an orderly transaction between marketparticipants at
measurementdate.

Where paymentfor property, plant and equipmentis deferred beyond normal creditterms, its costis the cash price
equivalent;i.e. deferred paymentamountis effectively discounted atan asset-specific rate over the period of credit.

Assets acquired atno cost, or for nominal consideration, are initiallyrecognised attheir fair value at the date of acquisition.
Capitalisation thresholds

Property, plantand equipmentand intangible assets costing above $5,000 individually, or forming part of a network costing
more than $5,000, are capitalised. ltems below these amounts are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Major inspection costs

The labour costof performing majorinspections for faults is recognised in the carrying amountof an assetas areplacement
of a part, if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

Restoration costs

The presentvalue of the expected costfor the restoration or costof dismantling ofan assetafter its useis included in the
costof the respective assetifthe recognition criteria for a provision are met.

Assets not able to be reliably measured

RMS has minor cultural collection items such as prints, drawings and artefacts thatcannotbe reliablyvalued and are
considered immaterial thathave not been recognised in the statementoffinancial position.

Valuation and depreciation
Physical non-currentassets are valued in accordance with the "Valuation of Physical Non-Current Assets atFair Value' Policy

and Guidelines Paper (TPP 14-01). This policy adopts fair value in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurementand
AASB 116 Property, Plantand Equipment.
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Property, plantand equipmentis measured atthe highestand bestuse by market participants that is physicallypossible,
legallypermissible and financiallyfeasible. The highestand bestuse mustbe available at a period that is not remote and
take into accountthe characteristics ofthe assetbeing measured, including anysocio-political restrictions imposed by
government. In mostcases, after taking into accountthese considerations, the highestand bestuse is the existinguse. In
limited circumstances, the highestand bestuse maybe a feasible alternative use, where there are no restrictions onuse or
where there is a feasible higherrestricted alternative use.

Fair value of property, plantand equipmentis based on a market participants’ perspective, using valuation techniques
(marketapproach, costapproach,income approach) thatmaximise relevantobservable inputs and minimise unobservable
inputs. Also refer to Note 15 for further information regarding fair value.

RMS revalues each class of property, plantand equipmentwith sufficientregularityto ensure the carrying amountofeach
assetinthe class does notdiffer materiallyfrom its fair value at reporting date. Further details on assetrevaluations can be
foundin note 15.

Interim revaluations are performed between comprehensive revaluations where cumulative changes to indicators/indices
suggestfairvalue may differ materiallyfrom carrying value. Generally, an interim revaluation is performed bymanagementif
the cumulative changes in indicators/indices are less than 20%. An interim formal revaluation is performed by external
professionallyqualified valuers when the cumulative changes in indicators/indices exceed 20%.

In circumstances where assetvalues are deemed material, managementmayengage external valuers to perform an interim
revaluation where changes in indicators/indices are lower than 20%. Managementwill assess whether comprehensive
revaluations are required more frequentlyif the interim revaluations indicate movements are generallymore than 20%.

Non-specialised assets with shortuseful lives are measured atdepreciated historical cost, as an approximation offair value.
The entity has assessed that any difference between fair value and depreciated historical costis unlikely to be material.

For other assets valued using other valuation techniques, anybalances ofaccumulated depreciation atthe revaluation date
in respectof those assets are credited to the assetaccounts to which they relate. The net assetaccounts are then increased
or decreased bythe revaluation increments or decrement.

Revaluation increments are credited directlyto the assetrevaluation reserve, except that, to the extent that an increment
reverses arevaluation decrementin respectof that class ofassetpreviouslyrecognised as an expense, the incrementis
recognised immediatelyas revenue.

Revaluation decrements are recognised immediatelyas expenses, except that, to the extent that a credit balance exists in
the assetrevaluation reserve in respectof the same class ofassets, theyare debited directly to the assetrevaluation
reserve.

As a not-for-profit entity, revaluation increments and decrements are offsetagainstone anotherwithin a class ofnon-current
assets, butnototherwise.

When revaluing non-currentassets using the costapproach, the gross amountand the related accumulated depreciation are
separatelyrestated. Where the income approach or marketapproach is used, accumulated depreciation is eliminated
againstthe gross carrying amountof the assetand the net amountrestated to the revalued amountof the asset.
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Where an assetthat has previouslybeenrevaluedis disposed of, any balance remaining in the assetrevaluationreserve in
respectof that assetis transferred to accumulated funds.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipmentare subjectto annual review.

Plant and equipment

Asset Measurement/Valuation Policy Depreciation policy

Depreciated on the straight-line method over
Plant, equipmentand vehicles Depreciated historical cost the estimated useful life between 2 and 60

years.

Depreciated on the straight-line method over
Computer hardware Depreciated historical cost the estimated useful life between 2 and 5
years.

Depreciated on the straight-line method over
Electronic office equipment Depreciated historical cost the estimated useful life between5and 10
years.

The carrying amountis considered to approximate the fair value of these assets.

Except for certain non-depreciable assets, depreciation is provided for on a straight-line basis so as to write off the
depreciable amount of each assetas itis consumed over its useful life to the entity.

All material identifiable components of assets are depreciated separately over their useful lives.

Estimates of useful life for depreciation and amortisation purposes have been determined with regard to a number of factors
including the expected retention period by the entity and the underlying physical, technical and commercial nature of the
assets as defined in AASB 116 Property, Plant and Equipment. In accordance with this standard the shortest alternative
useful life is applied.
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Land and buildings

Asset

Measurement/Valuation policy

Depreciation policy

Administrative land and buildings
in service

Works administration properties

Land and buildings in service are generally
valued using the marketapproach and at
depreciated replacementcost (buildings).
Where such properties are rented externally
they are valued at currentmarket value.
Land and buildings in service are subjectto
comprehensive revaluation every three years
by registered valuers. Desktop valuations will
be carried outinthe two years in between

to ensure that carrying amounts do notdiffer
materiallyfrom fair value at reporting date.

Buildings — Depreciated on the
straight-line basis overthe
estimated useful life of between 10
and 50 years.

Land and Buildings Acquired for
Future Roadworks (LAFFRW)

LAFFRW comprises ofuntenanted land for
road (ULR), publicreserves, rental and surplus
properties.

With the exception of publicreserves, LAFFRW
are initiallyvalued at acquisition costand
progressivelyrevalued to current marketvalue
over a three year cycle by registered valuers.
Desktop valuations will be carried out in the
two years in between the comprehensive
revaluation to ensure that carrying amounts do
not differ materiallyfrom fair value at reporting
date.

Publicreserves are initiallyvalued at
acquisition costand revalued to the Urban
Average Rateable Value per hectare within
each Local Government Area (LGA) adjusted
by an “open spaces ratio” (OSR).

No depreciation is charged as
buildings are notpurchased to
generate revenue but ultimately to
be demolished forroadworks.

Leasehold improvements

Depreciated historical cost.

Amortised over the period of the
lease, orthe useful life of the
leasehold improvement, whichever
is shorter.

Individual LAFFRW parcels required for road construction are transferred to land under roads WIP when road construction
begins. The date of transferis the construction startdate as detailed in the construction contract. At time of transfer,
LAFFRW parcels are deemed to have no feasible alternative use and are revalued downwards to restrictionin use.

Included in the value of land and buildings in service is an amountof$23.3 million (2017: $31.0 million) for both land and
buildings on Crown land excluding depreciation on the buildings. As RMS effectively “controls” this Crown land, it has been
included in RMS’ Statementof Financial Position. Should such Crown land be transferred or disposed of, associated
buildings are written off in the financial year the transfer or disposal takes place.

Land and Buildings Acquired for Future Roadworks comprise of untenanted land forroads (ULR), rental properties and
surplus properties. The category is determined bythe current use of the property. Land and Buildings will be revalued at
marketvalue over a three year cycle and desktop valuations performed in the two years in between to ensure that carrying
amounts do notdiffer materiallyfrom fair value at reporting date. In 2017-18,ULR, Rental, Surplus and Administration
Properties were subjectto a desktop revaluation by registered valuers.
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Indexation is applied to land and buildings notrevalued as part of the current year progressive revaluations to ensure their
carrying amounts do notdiffer materiallyfrom their fair value as at 30 June 2018. For details referto Note 12(a).

Infrastructure systems
Asset Measurement/Valuation Depreciation policy
policy
Roads Depreciated replacement Depreciated over estimated useful life

Earthworks — Not Depreciated
Earthworks — Depreciated
PavementWearing Surface — Asphalt
PavementWearing Surface — Spray Sealed
PavementWearing Surface — Concrete
PavementBase and Sub-Base
Culverts & Drainage

Safety Barriers

Fences

Retaining Walls and Gabions

Noise Walls

Medians

RestAreas

Other Assets (Footway, Vegetation,

Landscaping, Kerbs and Gutters, Guide Posts,
PavementMarkings, Signposting, and Street

Lighting)

cost

using straight-line method.

Indefinite

50 years

18 - 25 years
7-12 years
18 - 25 years
81 - 108 years
50 - 100 years
40 - 80 years
40 years

60 - 100 years
100 years

50 years

10 - 20 years
20 - 50 years

Bridges

Timber structure and timber truss
Concrete structures

Steel structures

Heritage bridges

Bridge size culverts/tunnels

Depreciated replacement
cost

Depreciated over estimated useful life
dependanton bridge type using straight-
line method:

60-100 years
100 years
100years
100years
100 years

Traffic signals

Depreciated replacement
cost

Depreciated over estimated useful life of
20 years using straightline method.
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Asset

Measurement/Valuation
policy

Depreciation policy

Traffic Control Network

Traffic systems

TransportManagement Centre

Variable message signs
Variable Speed signs
Weather Stations

Depreciated replacement
cost

Depreciated over estimated useful life
dependanton assettype using straight-ine
method

- 5-20years

- 5-20years

- 15-50years

- 10-50years

- 10-50years

Land under roads and within road reserves

The urban Average

Rateable Value per hectare

within each Local
GovernmentArea (LGA) is
adjusted by an “open

spaces ratio”to approximate

fair value (unimproved and
pre-subdivision land). The
urban Average Rateable
Value by LGA is derived
from data provided by the
Valuer-General.

No depreciation applied as land does not
have limited useful life.

Sydney Harbour Tunnel

Immersedtube
Mechanical and electrical
Pavement

Earthworks

Depreciated replacement
cost

Depreciated over estimate useful life
depending on assettype:

- 100years

- 35years

- 35years

- Indefinite life

Maritime roads

Depreciated replacement
cost

Depreciated over estimated useful life of
between 20 and 40 years.

Wharves and jetties

Depreciated replacement
cost

Depreciated over estimated useful life of
between 8 and 45 years.

Moorings and wetlands

Income approach

Indefinite lives.

Dredging assets

Replacementcost

Indefinite lives.

Seawall

Depreciated replacement
cost

Depreciated over estimated useful life of
between 25 and 40 years.

Navigational aids

Depreciated historical cost

Depreciated on the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life between 5
and 20 years.

The determination of unitreplacementrates forroad, bridge and traffic control signal infrastructure valuations is carried outat
leastevery five years by independentexternallyengaged qualified valuers, engineering contractors and employees of RMS.

These assets are recorded initiallyat construction costand the average annual percentage increase in the Australian Bureau
of Statistics’ Roads and Bridge CostIndex (RBCI) (2017: Australian Bureau of Statistics’ Roads and Bridge CostIndex
(RBCI)) is applied each year until the following unitreplacementrate review is undertaken.
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Subsequentto the review, infrastructure is valued using the unit replacementrates, adjusted by the applicable RBCI(2017:
RBCI).

Land underroads and within road reserves are revalued annuallyby applying the mostrecenturban rateable average value
per hectare provided by the Valuer-Generalto the land underroads and within reserves within each Local Government Area.
(LGA), and adjusting this value by the “open spaces ratio”. The valuations are based on certain assumptionsincluding
property being vacant and therefore do not take into accountcosts that may be incurred in removing roads and other
improvements. The Valuer-General's urban average rateable values are calculated by reference to land values only and do
notinclude the value of any improvements.

Major works-in-progress are valued at construction costand exclude the cost of land, which is currently disclosed as land
underroads.

For details referto Note 15(b).

A full valuation of the road and bridge infrastructure assets was carried outby an independentvalueron 31 March 2018. All
road and bridge infrastructure assets are stated atfair value using the depreciated replacementcost(DRC) approach.
The methods and significantassumptions applied in estimating the ‘Roads’ and ‘Bridges’ assetclass fairvalues include:

Valuation methodologies
Roads

Primary Approach —applied to pavements (wearing surface and base/sub-base), culverts, earthworks, safety barriers and

fencing, noise walls, retaining walls, medians and restareas. This approach involved the following steps:
e Obtaining inventory details for components by Road Asset Management System (RAMS) segment/unique ID
e Estimating replacement costs based on quantity/area/length and applying unit rates to the inventory listings
e Estimating normal useful lives and remaining useful lives based on asset condition (base/sub-base only)
e Applying depreciation (straightline) based on age/life and remaining useful life, and asset condition (base/sub-
base only) analysis to estimate fair value.

Secondary Approach —applied to “other” corridor assets categories. This approach involved the following steps:
Obtaining percentage breakdown of components from RMS’s Project Management Office (PMO)
Converting PMO percentages to “known assets” percentages

Estimating replacement costs based on replacement cost of “known assets”

Estimating normal useful lives

Applying depreciation (straight line) based on agel/life analysis to estimate fair value

Hybrid Approach —used for longitudinal and subsoil drainage assets, involving a combination ofthe Primaryand Secondary
Approaches.

Earthworks assumptions
e Sub-categories for Earthworks have been identified by ‘Region’, ‘Road rank’, and ‘Terrain’
¢ RMS’s PMO unit rates were only available by region and therefore adjusted to include road rank and terrain,
using assumed typical earthwork depths, to capture the cost variations for all stereotypes

Pavementassumptions
e Base/sub-base componentages have been based on the newer of the road construction or rehabilitation dates
o The effective age and remaining useful lives ofbase/sub-base assets to determine their fair value are estimated
based on the asset condition data derived by the RMS pavement engineers.
o Wearing surface asset ages have been based on the newer of construction, resurfacing or rehabilitation dates
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¢ Remaining life extensions of 2 years have been applied to wearing surface components pasttheir useful lives.
These assumptions are based on RMS'’s projected pavement rebuilding/resurfacing estimates.
e Sub-categories for Pavements have been identified by ‘Pavement category’, ‘Region’, and ‘Road rank’

Culvertand Drainage assumptions

Ages for Culverts have been calculated using the road construction date

A remaining life extension of 5 years has been applied to all Culverts and Drainage that were pasttheir useful life

Stereotypes for Culverts have been identified as ‘Culvert type’, ‘Region’, and ‘Pipe diameter / box width’

Culverts with high risk rating (ARL 1 and 2) have been depreciated on a straight line basis over an effective

remaining useful live of 10 years in accordance with RMS’ current Corridor Asset Management Plan

¢ Longitudinal Drainage assumed to be located in urban terrains in Sydney region only (Hunter region captured in
Culverts inventory), and applied to 50 percent of segment lengths only

e 375mm pipe culvert unitrate was deemed most appropriate for Longitudinal Drainage

e Subsoil Drainage primary types include edge and trench drains and only concrete pavement types assumed to
include edge drains. Unitrates (per m) were based on 100mm perforated plastic piping.

e Major culverts over 6 metres are classified as bridges and included in the Bridge Asset Class.

Safety Barrier and Fence assumptions
e Sub-categories have been identified by ‘Barrier type’, ‘Start and end terminal type’ and ‘Region’
e Age calculations for depreciation were determined using the barrier construction date, if available, or the road
segment construction date as a proxy.

¢ Aremaining life extension of 5 years has been applied to all safety barriers and fences thatwere pasttheir useful
life.

Retaining Walls, Rest Areas and Medians assumptions
e The ages of the assets were calculated based on the segment construction date
¢ Aremaining life extension of 5 years has been applied to the assets that were past their useful life.

Noise Walls assumptions

e Age calculations for depreciation were determined using the noise wall construction date, if available, or the road
segment construction date as a proxy

e Aremaining life extension of 5 years has been applied to all noise walls that were past their useful life.
Bridges and Tunnels

The approach involved the following steps:

- Obtaining bridge assetinventory data from the Bridge Information System (BIS).

- Applying unit rates to the inventory listing based on the modern equivalent capitalisation type.

- Estimating replacementcostbased on the bridge deck area.

- Estimating normal useful lives and remaining useful lives based on element condition data.

- Applying depreciation (straightline) based on age/life analysis to estimate fair value. The elementcondition data
collected by RMS bridge maintenance planners was used to assess the effective age and effective remaining lives
of the bridge assets

Due to the specialised nature of RMS’ ‘Roads’ assetclass, and the fact that RMS’ road assets are notsold ortraded, the fair
value for this assetclass cannotbe determined with reference to observable prices in an active marketor recent market
transactions on arm’slength terms. Instead, the fair value has been determined using the valuation techniques outlined
above, primarilywith reference to current tendered contract rates produced by the RMS Project Management Office.

Capitalisation of expenditure

Expenditure (including personnel service costs) in respectofroad developmentand construction, bridge and tunnel
replacementand some road safetyand traffic managementare capitalised as infrastructure systems (refer to Note 2(a)).
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Finance leases

A distinction is made between finance leases which effectively transfer from the lessorto the lessee substantiallyall the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership ofthe leased assets, and operating leases under which the lessor effectively retains all
such risks and rewards.

Where a non-currentassetis acquired bymeans ofa finance lease, the assetis recognised atthe lower of its fair value and
the presentvalue of minimum lease payments atthe commencementofthe lease term. The corresponding liabilityis
established atthe same amount. Lease payments are allocated between the principal componentand the interestexpense.
Subsequentto initial recognition, the assetis accounted forin accordance with the accounting policyapplicable to that class
of asset.

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

As a not-for-profit entity with no cash generating units,impairmentunder AASB 136 Impairmentof Assets is unlikelyto arise.
Since property, plantand equipmentis carried atfair value or an amountthat approximates fairvalue, impairmentcan only
ariseinthe rare circumstances such as where the costs ofdisposal are material.

Specifically, impairmentis unlikelyfor not-for-profit entities given that AASB 136 modifies the recoverable amounttestfor
non-cash generating assets of not-for-profitentities to the higher of fair value less costs ofdisposal and depreciated

replacementcost, where depreciated replacementcostis also fair value.

The entity assesses, during each reporting date, whether there is an indication thatan assetmaybe impaired.
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(a) Private sector provided infrastructure

2018 2017

Notes $'000 $'000

M2 Motorway/M2 Widening Carrying amount at start of year 235,108 196,823
Annual increment - emerging right to receive 3(f) 40,318 38,285

Carrying amount at end of year 275,426 235,108

M4 Motorway Service Centre Carrying amount at start of year 11,818 10,215
Annual increment - emerging right to receive 3(f) 1,010 1,603

Transfer to RMS owned Land and Buildings 12(a) (12,828) -

Carrying amount at end of year - 11,818

M4 Motorway/M4 Widening Carrying amount at start of year - -
Annual increment - emerging right to receive 7,060 -

Carrying amount at end of year 7,060 -

M5 South-West Motorway Carrying amount at start of year 353,966 312,127
Annual increment - emerging right to receive 3(f) 44,434 41,839

Carrying amount at end of year 398,400 353,966

Eastern Distributor Carrying amount at start of year 167,008 146,110
Annual increment - emerging right to receive 3(f) 22,269 20,898

Carrying amount at end of year 189,277 167,008

Cross City Tunnel Carrying amount at start of year 248,437 219,207
Annual increment - emerging right to receive 3(f) 30,832 29,230

Carrying amount at end of year 279,269 248,437

Westlink M7 Motorway Carrying amount at start of year 508,855 445,693
Annual increment - emerging right to receive 3(f) 66,705 63,162

Carrying amount at end of year 575,560 508,855

Lane Cove Tunnel Carrying amount at start of year 309,716 271,321
Annual increment - emerging right to receive 3(f) 40,709 38,395

Carrying amount at end of year 350,425 309,716

Total carrying amount at the end of period 2,075,417 1,834,908

Total Carrying amount at start of year 1,834,908 1,601,496
Annual increment - emerging right to receive 253,337 233,412

Transfer to RMS owned assets 12(a) (12,828) -

Carrying amount at end of year 2,075,417 1,834,908
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Recognition and Measurement

In respectof certain private sector provided infrastructure assets: M2 Motorway, M4 Service Centre, M5 South-West
Motorway, the Eastern Distributor, the Cross City Tunnel, the Westlink M7 Motorway, the Lane Cove Tunnel and the M4
Widening of the WestConnexStage 1A, RMS values eachright to receive assetby reference to RMS’ emerging share ofthe
written down replacementcostof each assetapportioned using an annuityapproach. Under this approach, the ultimate value
of the right to receive the property is treated as the compound value ofan annuity that accumulates as a series ofequal
annual receipts together with an amountrepresenting notional compound interest (refer note 3(f)).

RMS initiallyaccounts for any up-front contribution to the private sector operator for the construction of the PSPl as
prepayment, and recognises them progressivelyas expense over the concession period.

M2 Motorway

RMS entered into a contract with the concession holder to design, construct, operate and maintain the M2 Motorway. Under
the terms of the initial Project Deed, ownership of the M2 Motorway will revert to RMS 45 years from the M2 commencement
date of 26 May 1997.

To facilitate these works, RMS leased land detailed in the M2 Motorway ProjectDeed for the term of the Agreement. Until the
projectrealises areal after tax internal rate of return of 12.25 percent per annum, rentis payable, at the Lessee’s discretion,
in cash or by promissorynote. On achievementof the required rate, the rentis payable in cash. Underthe terms ofthe lease,
RMS must not present any of the promissory notes for payment until the earlier of the end of the term of Agreement or the
achievement of the required rate of return. The term of the Agreement ends on the 45th anniversary of the M2
commencement date (i.e. 26 May 2042) subject to the provisions of the M2 Motorway Project Deed.

No payments have been made for rents on the leases forthe year ended 30 June 2018 (2017: No payments made). RMS, as
at 30 June 2018, has received promissorynotes for rent on the above leases totalling $204.4 million (2017: $192.6 million).
The value of these promissory notes as at 30 June 2018 is $36.8 million (2017: $33.7 million) (Refer to note 11).

The NSW Government announced the Hills M2 Upgrade on 26 October 2010. Construction of the upgrade was substantially
completed in August2013. The initial construction costwas $550 million. RMS has recognised an emerging asset for the M2
upgrade until the end of the existing concession period. In 2014-15 the concession period was extended for a further period
of four years on the completion of the road widening.

The total carrying value of the M2 Motorway emerging asset, including the M2 Upgrade, is $275.4 million as at 30 June 2018
(2017: $235.1 million).

An agreementwas reached on 31 January 2015 for further integration works to be done to the M2, to connect it with the new
NorthConnex motorway. The work was completed in May 2018 which extended the concession term by a further two years
to 30 June 2048.
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M4 Motorway Service Centre

In October 1992, RMS and the concession holder entered into the M4 Service Centre Project Deed under which RMS agreed
to acquire land and lease the land to the concession holder. The concession holder agreed to finance, design, construct,
maintain and operate two service centres which are located on each carriageway of the M4 at Eastern Creek.

The M4 Service Centres were opened for use on 1 January 1993. The concession holder operated, maintained and repaired
the service centres until 31 December 2017, after which the service centres was transferred back to RMS.

The total carrying value of the M4 Motorway Service Centre emerging asset was $12.8 million as at 31 December 2017
(2017: $11.8 million) after which it was transferred back to RMS owned land and buildings assetat $51.9 million.

M5 South-West Motorway

RMS entered into a contract with the concession holder to design, construct, operate and maintain the M5 Motorway. The
initial concession period for the M5 Motorway was for the period 14 August 1992 to 14 August 2022.

In consideration for the concession holder undertaking construction of an additional interchange at Moorebank (M5
Improvements), the initial concession period has been subsequently extended to 22 August 2023.

The M5 South-West Motorway Call Option Deed provides that if, after at least 25 years from the M5 Western Link
commencementdate of 26 June 1994, RMS determines that the expected financial return has been achieved, RMS has the
right to purchase eitherthe businessfrom the concession holder or the shares in the concession holder. The exercise price
under the M5 Call Option Deed will be based on open market valuation of the business or shares.

In November 2009, the NSW Government announced a proposal to expand the M5 corridor. The M5 West widening would
expand the South West Motorway generallyfrom two to three lanes in each direction to reduce travel time for motorists using
the motorwayand surrounding roads. Major construction started in August2012 and was completed in December 2014. The
end of the concession period has been extended by 3 years and 3 months from 22 August 2023 to 10 December 2026 upon
completion ofthe widening work. RMS has recognised an additional emerging asset for the M5 expansion to the end of the
concession period, i.e. to 10 December 2026.

The total carrying value of the M5 South-WestMotorway emerging asset, including the M5 widening, is $398.4million as at 30
June 2018 (2017: $354.0 million).
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Eastern Distributor

An agreementwas signed with the concession holder on 27 June 1997 to finance, design, construct, operate, maintain and
repair the Eastern Distributor which was opened to traffic on 23 July 2000.

In consideration of RMS granting to the concession holder the right to levwy and retain tolls on the Eastern Distributor, the
concession holderis required to pay concession fees in accordance with the Agreement. From the date of Financial Close,
which occurred on 18 August 1997, the concession holder has paid $285 million by way of promissory notes (being $15
million on Financial Close and $15 million on each anniversary of Financial Close). Afurther $2.2 million was received in
cash six months after Financial Close and $8 million in cash on the third anniversary of Financial Close. Under the
Agreement, the promissorynotes show a paymentdate (subjectto provisions in the Project Deed) of 24 July 2048 and, as at
30 June 2018, the promissory notes have a value of $20.6 million (2017: $18.7million) (refer note 11).

Underthe terms of the ProjectDeed, ownership ofthe Eastern Distributor will revert to RMS on the earlier of the achievement
of specified financial returns outlined in the Deed or 48 years from the Eastern Distributor Commencement Date of 23 July
2000. The conservative period of 48 years has been used to calculate RMS’ emerging share of the asset. The total carrying
value of the Eastern Distributor emerging assetis $189.3 million as at 30 June 2018 (2017: $167.0 million).

Cross City Tunnel
An agreementwas signed with the concession holderon 18 December 2002 to design, construct, operate and maintain the
Cross City Tunnel. Major construction started on 28 January 2003. The Cross City Tunnel was completed and opened to

traffic on 28 August 2005.

The construction costwas $642.0 million with the costbeing metby the private sector. Underthe terms ofthe agreement, an
external party will operate the motorway until 18 December 2035, after which the motorwaywill be transferred backto RMS.

Reimbursementof certain developmentcosts was received by RMS from the operatorin the form of an upfront cash payment
in August2005. The amountof this paymentwas $96.9 million.

The total carrying value of the Cross City Tunnel emerging assetis $279.3 million as at30 June 2018 (2017:$248.4 million).




Roads and Maritime Services
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

13. Non-current assets - intangibles assets and other (continued)

Westlink M7 Motorway

An agreement was signed with the concession holder on 13 February 2003 to design, construct, operate and maintain the
Westlink M7 Motorway. Major construction started on 7 July 2003 and the completed motorway was opened to traffic on 16
December 2005.

The construction cost was $1.5 billion. The Federal Government contributed $356.0 million towards the cost of the project
with the remainder of the cost being met by the private sector. RMS had responsibility under the contract for the provision of
access to property required for the project. As a result of the NSW government entering into agreement with the concession
holderto build NorthConnex(refer below), the concession period on the Westlink M7 motorway has been extended from 14
February 2037 to 30 June 2048. Underthe terms ofthe agreement, the concession holder will operate Westlink M7 until 30
June 2048, after which the motorway will be transferred back to RMS.

Reimbursement of certain development costs were received by RMS from the operator in the form of an upfront cash
paymentin January 2006. The amount of this payment was $193.8 million.

The total carrying value of the Westlink M7 Motorway emerging asset is $575.6 million as at 30 June 2018 (2017: $508.9
million).

At the time of the modification to the contract for the NorthConnex RMS was expected to receive a further $358.8 million
(nominal value) in concession fees over a period from 30 September 2015 to 31 March 2037 (refer to Note 20). The
concession receivable was subsequently monetised in October 2015 in which RMS received $174.2 million proceeds.

Lane Cove Tunnel

An agreement was signed with the concession holder on 4 December 2003 to finance, design, construct, operate and
maintain the Lane Cove Tunnel Project. Major construction started on 24 June 2004 and the tunnel was opened to traffic on
25 March 2007.

The construction costwas $1.1 billion, with the costbeing metby the private sector. RMS was responsible under the contract
for the provision of access to property required for the project, which was identified by the Project Deed. On 31 January
2015, the concession term on the Lane Cove Tunnel was conditionally extended from 9 January 2037 to 30 June 2048.
Underthe terms of the agreement, the concession holder will operate the Lane Cove Tunnel until 30 June 2048, after which
the motorway will be transferred back to RMS.

Reimbursement of certain development costs were received by RMS from the operator in the form of an upfront cash
paymentin April 2007. The amount of this payment was $79.3 million.

The total carrying value of the Lane Cove Tunnel emerging assetis $350.4 million as at30 June 2018 (2017: $309.7 million).

In consideration for the extension of the concession term, RMS will receive a further $200 million in concession fees over a
period from 31 December 2017 to 30 June 2019 (refer to note 20). As at 30 June 2018, RMS has received $45.0 million in
concession fees (2017: $0). RMS values the concession receivable at amortised cost. As at 30 June 2018, these future
receipts have a value of $146.9 million (2017: $183.1 million) (refer to Note 11).
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13. Non-current assets - intangibles assets and other (continued)

NorthConnex

An agreementwas signed with the concession holderon 31 January2015to finance, design, construct, operate and maintain
the NorthConnex motorway.

The motorway is estimated to cost approximately $3.0 billion to complete. Under the terms of the agreement, RMS will
contribute $992.6 million in cash towards the construction, construction managementand property acquisition costs, and the
balance will be financed by the concession holder. RMS will receive up to $412.3 million from RestartNSWand up to $405.0
million from the federal governmentin the form of non-reciprocal cash grants to finance the bulk of its contribution.

On completion of construction, which is expected to be in 2019, the project deed stipulates that the concession holder will
operate the motorway until 30 June 2048, after which the motorway will be transferred back to RMS. Up until the end of the
concession period, RMS will grantthe concession holder the right to lewy and retain tolls on the motorway.

In consideration for building the NorthConnexmotorway, the NorthConnexagreementalso provides for enhanced concession
terms to the operator in the form of an extension of the concession terms on the Westlink M7 motorway, Lane Cove Tunnel
and M2 Motorway to 30 June 2048.

When the motorwayis open to the public, RMS will value the NorthConnexassetby reference to RMS’ emerging share ofthe
depreciated replacementcostofthe assetover the period of the concession period calculated using the effective interestrate
method (refer note 3(f)). As at 30 June 2018, RMS has not recognised an emerging asset.

WestConnex

The WestConnexprojectcomprises three stages including M4 Widening and M4 East Tunnel (New M4), construction of the
new M5 Tunnel, and the M4-M5 link.

M4 Widening and New M4 (Stage 1)

The Stage 1 ProjectDeed was signed with the concession holder on 4 June 2015 to design, construct, operate and maintain
part of the WestConnex motorway including widening the M4 West motorway (Stage 1A), and the construction of surface
works and new tunnels for M4 East (Stage 1B).

Stage 1A was opened to traffic on 4 July 2017 and the completion of Stage 1B construction is expected to be in 2019. The
Project Deed stipulates that the concession holder will operate the motorway until 2060, after which the motorway will be
transferred backto RMS at no cost. Up until the end of the concession period, RMS will grantthe concession holder the right
to lewy and retain tolls on the motorway. Underthe Project Deed, RMS is entitled to a share of tolling revenue above the base
revenue threshold. As the revenue is contingent upon the level of traffic on the road, RMS will only recognise the revenue
when it has been determined that the actual tolling revenue collected has exceeded the threshold.

The total carrying value of the M4 Widening (Stage 1A) emerging assetis $7.1 million as at 30 June 2018 (2017: $Nil).
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13. Non-current assets - intangibles assets and other (continued)

New M5 (Stage 2)
The Stage 2 Deed was signed on 20 November 2015 to develop and upgrade the existing M5 East from Beverly Hills to St
Peters.Underthe Stage 2 Project Deed, RMS granted the concession holders aright to design, construct, operate, maintain

and collect tolls until 2060.

As part of the arrangement, RMS will grant Motorway Stratum Land Leases over New M5 Main Works and M5 East Lease
from January 2020 (unless the toll road is opened prior), and M5 West Lease from December 2026 to the termination date
of 31 December2060. Underthe Stratum Land Lease, RMS is entitled to a share of tolling revenue above the base revenue
threshold. As the revenue is contingentupon the level of traffic on the road, RMS will only recognise the revenue when it has
been determined that the actual tolling revenue collected has exceeded the threshold.

New M4 and New M5 (Stage 1B and 2)

RMS will not recognise anyamounts relating to the improvement of the roads during the design and construction phase, as
the risks and rewards of the improvements to the road rest with the operator. When the motorways are open to the public,
RMS will value the WestConnex assets by reference to RMS’ emerging share of the depreciated replacement cost of the
assets over the concession period calculated using the effective interest rate method (refer note 3(f)). As at 30 June 2018,
RMS has notrecognised an emerging asset.

M4-M5 Link (Stage 3)

The Stage 3A Deed was signed with the concession holderon 12 June 2018 to design, construct, operate and maintain the
main tunnel connecting the M4 Eastat Haberfield to the New M5 at the St Peters Interchange, via Rozelle and Camperdown.
The Project Deed stipulates thatthe concession holder will operate the motorwayuntil 31 December 2060, after which the
motorwaywill be transferred backto RMS at no cost. Up until the end of the concession period, RMS will grant the
concession holderthe rightto lewy and retain tolls on the motorway.

The Stage 3B is currently in the developmentphase anditis not expected any agreements will be reached with the proposed
concession holderuntil the 2018-19 financial year.
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13. Non-current assets - intangibles assets and other (continued)

(b) Other intangible assets

2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000
Balance at start of year
Information technology system:
Cost 368,727 333,611
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (199,561) (176,083)
Net carrying amount at the start of year 169,166 157,528
Balance at end of year
Information technology system:
Cost 371,015 368,727
Accumulated amortisation and impairment (217,219) (199,561)
Net carrying amount at end of year 153,796 169,166
Net carrying amountat startof year 169,166 157,528
Additions 19,037 15,946
Disposals 4 (437) (271)
Transfer (to)/from PPE 12 3,390 30,809
Amortisation expense 2(d) (37,360) (34,846)
Net carrying amount at end of year 13(b) 153,796 169,166

Recognition and Measurement

RMS recognisesintangible assetsonlyif itis probable that future economic benefits will flow to RMS and the cost of the
assetcan be measured reliably. Intangible assets are measured initiallyatcost. All research costs are expensed.
Developmentcosts are onlycapitalised when certain criteria are met.

Intangible assets are tested for impairmentwhere an indicator ofimpairmentexists. If the recoverable amountis less thaniits
carrying amount, the carrying amountis reduced to recoverable amountand the reduction is recognised as an impairment
loss. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried atcostless any accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses.

Asset Valuation policy Depreciation policy

Intangible assets Depreciated historical cost Amortised using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of between 2 and 10 years.
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14. Non-current assets held for sale

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Land and buildings 835 275
Plantand equipment 286 -
Non-current assets held for sale 1,121 275

Recognition and Measurement
RMS has certain non-currentassets classified as held for sale, where their carrying amountwill be recovered principally

through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as metwhen the sale is highly
probable, the assetis available forimmediate sale in its presentcondition, and the sale of the assetis expected to be
completed within one year from the date of classification. Non-currentassets held for sale are recognised atthe lower of
carrying amountand fair value less costs ofdisposal. These assets are notdepreciated while theyare classified as held for
sale.

Land and buildings held for sale include properties thathave beenidentified as no longer required to fulfil long-term plans for
road developmentoradministrative needs. These assets are placed on auction ortender as outlined inthe annual asset
selling plan and sales budget. Plantand equipment held for sale mainlyconsists of fleet assets thatare no longer required for
business purposes. The gain or loss recognised on sale is: land and buildings $1.64 million loss (2017: $134.9 million gain),
plantand equipment$0.08 million gain (2017: $Nil). The written down value of assets held for sale derecognised: land and
buildings $20.7 million (2017: $226.6 million), plantand equipment$0.10 million (2017: $Nil).

The current period land held for sale includes revaluation incrementof $NIL (2017:$0.3 million). Further details regarding the
fair value measurementare disclosedin Note 15.
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15. Fair value measurement of non-financial assets

(a) Fair value hierarchy

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an assetor paid to transfera liabilityin an orderly transaction between
marketparticipants atthe measurementdate. The fair value measurementis based on the presumption thatthe transaction
to sellthe assetortransferthe liabilitytakes place either in the principal marketfor the assetor liabilityor in the absence ofa

principal market, in the mostadvantageous marketforthe assetor liability.

When measuring fair value, the valuation technique used maximises the use ofrelevant observable inputs and minimises the
use of unobservable inputs. Under AASB 13, the entity categorises, for disclosure purposes, the valuation techniques based

on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

e |Level 1 - quoted prices inactive markets for identical assets /liabilities thatthe entity can access at the measurement

date.

e |Level 2 —inputs otherthan quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable, eitherdirectly or indirectly.
e Level 3 —inputsthat are not based on observable marketdata (unobservable inputs).

The entity recognisestransfers between levels ofthe fair value hierarchyat the end of the reporting period during which the

change has occurred.

Refer to note 30 for further disclosures regarding fair value measurements offinancial and non-financial assets.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 et S
value
2018 2018 2018 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings - 3,660,886 = 3,660,886
Infrastructure systems* - - 81,222,312 81,222,312
Non-current assets held for sale - 1,121 - 1,121
- 3,662,007 81,222,312 84,884,319
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total fair
value
2017 2017 2017 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Property, plant and equipment
Land and buildings - 3,630,252 - 3,630,252
Infrastructure systems* - - 73,065,567 73,065,567
Non-current assets held for sale - 275 - 275
- 3,630,527 73,065,567 76,696,094

*Work in progress is measured at cost and has been excluded fromNote 15 Fair value measurement of non-financial assets note disclosure.
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15. Fair value measurement of non-financial assets (continued)

(b) Valuation techniques, inputs and processes

Valuation Technique

Valuation input

Roads

Depreciated replacementcostofsignificantroad asset
components:
Pavements
Asphalt
Concrete
Spray
Culverts
Drainage
Longitudinal
Subsoil
Safety Barriers
Fences
Retaining Walls
Medians
RestAreas
Noise Walls
Other

Assets are depreciated over estimated useful life depending
on road componenttype (Note 12).

Fair value is re-valued in interim periods between
comprehensive revaluations bymovements in the RBCI.

The determination of unitreplacementrates forroad
valuations is carried outat leastevery 5 years by independent
externally engaged qualified engineering contractors and
employees of RMS.

Replacementcostper unit of road assetcomponent.

Costper unithas been determined by reference to unit
prices quoted inthe mostrecentroad construction tender
documents. The price range is adjusted to eliminate
outlieramounts.

RBClis applied to the replacementcostof the
components, to ensure that carrying amounts are atfair
value.

Components are depreciated over their estimated useful
life depending onroad componenttype or remaining
useful life depending on road assets’ condition as
depicted by the pavementhealth index (PHI) or culvert
riskratings

Land under roads

The urban Average Rateable Value per hectare within each
Local GovernmentArea (LGA) is adjusted by an “open spaces
ratio” to approximate fair value (unimproved and pre-
subdivision land).

The urban Average Rateable Value by LGA is derived from
data provided by the Valuer-General.

Local GovernmentArea rateable land values provided by
the NSW Valuer-General.

Measurements ofland area in situ underroads.

Bridges

Depreciated replacementcostfor the following bridge types:
Timber Structures
Concrete structures
Steel structures
Bridge Trusses (timber and steel)
Heritage Bridges
Bridge size culverts/tunnels

Bridge assets are depreciated over estimated useful
depending on bridge type (Note 12).

Replacementcostperunit of bridge assets.

Costper unithas been determined by reference to unit
prices quoted inthe mostrecentbridge construction
tenderdocuments. The price range is adjusted to
eliminate outlieramounts.

RBCl is applied to the replacementcostof the assets, to
ensure thatcarrying amounts are at fair value.
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15. Fair value measurement of non-financial assets (continued)

Valuation Technique

Valuation input

Cost/m?rates per bridge type are derived from current
estimated bridge construction costs. Bridge assetfairvalue is
determined byapplying the replacementrate by type to bridge
area.

Fair value is re-valued in interim periods between
comprehensive revaluations bymovements in the RBCI.

The determination ofreplacementrates for bridge valuations is
carried out at leastevery 5 years by independentexternally
engaged qualified engineering contractors and employees of
RMS.

Assets are depreciated over their remaining useful life
depending on bridges’ condition as depicted bythe
elementcondition data or estimated useful life depending
on the bridge’s capitalisation type.

Sydney Harbour Tunnel

Depreciated replacementcostof majorassetcomponents:
Immersed Tube
Mechanical and Electrical
Pavement
Earthworks

Assets are depreciated over estimated useful life depending
on componenttype (Note 12).

The Sydney Harbour Tunnel (SHT) was initiallyvalued in
2009 as part of a review of the extant accounting
treatmentof the assetatthattime. A key outcome of that
review was an initial recognition of the physical assetin
the financial statements ofthe former Roads and Traffic
Authority.

Thereafter, the SHT has beenrevalued annuallyby the
RBCI. The RBClis appliedto the replacementcostofthe
components,to ensure that carrying amounts are atfair
value.

The fair value at that time was derived by indexing (RBCI)
estimates ofthe initial construction costof the SHT and
the relative proportions ofits major componenttypes.

Depreciation was applied over estimates of useful lives of
those componenttypes.

There has been no material change to either the initial
estimates orthe valuation process.

Traffic Signals Network

Depreciated replacementcost.
Assets are depreciated over estimated useful life (Note 12).

Fair value is re-valued in interim periods between
comprehensive revaluations bymovements in the RBCI.

The determination oftraffic signal unitreplacementrates for
valuations is carried outat leastevery 5 years by externally
engaged qualified engineering contractors and employees of
RMS.

Currentunit replacementcosts.

RBClis applied to the replacementcostof assets to
ensure the carrying amounts are at fair value.

Traffic Control Network

Depreciated replacementcostof majorassetcomponents:

Currentunit replacementcosts.
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15. Fair value measurement of non-financial assets (continued)

Valuation Technique

Valuation input

Traffic Systems
TransportManagementCentre
Variable Message signs

Assets are depreciated over estimated useful life depending
on componenttype (Note 12).

Fair value is re-valued in interim periods between
comprehensive revaluations bymovements in the RBCI.

The determination oftraffic control system unitreplacement
rates for valuations is carried out at leastevery 5 years by
externally engaged qualified engineering contractors and
employees of RMS.

RBCl is applied to the replacementcostof assets to
ensure the carrying amounts are at fair value.

Maritime Assets

Depreciated replacementcostfor:
* Wharves and jetties
* Dredging assets
* Seawall
* Maritime roads

Assets are depreciated over estimated useful life depending
on assettype (Note 12).

Fair value is re-valued in interim periods between
comprehensive revaluations byobtaining letter of assurances
from the external valuers.

The determination ofassetreplacementrates for valuations is
carried out at leastevery 5 years by externally engaged
professionals and employees of RMS.

Income Approach for:
Moorings and wetlands

Estimates oftotal revenue earned on long term mooring and
wetland leases are capitalised atnet presentvalue.

Currentunit replacementcosts.

Estimated total lease revenue.
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15. Fair value measurement of non-financial assets (continued)

(c) Reconciliation of recurring Level 3 fair value measurements

Land under . Sydney Traffic Traffic Maritime
Roads roads Bridges Harbour signals controls assets TOTAL
Tunnel network network
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2018 Netcarrying amountat startof year 53,735,359 2,176,261 15,351,566 942,684 120,500 166,249 572,948 73,065,567
Additions 486,397 - 109,195 - 3,934 12,550 - 612,076
Assets recognised for the firsttime 18,697 - 25,346 - - - - 44,043
Netrevaluation increments less revaluation 7576114 (413,642) 301,184 13,128 : 2,130 196,965 7,675,879
ecrements recognised in equity
desrements fecognisednetrestt : : : : 1470 : : 1470
Assetwrite-off (96,563) - (13,447) - (212) (4,490) (1,268) (115,980)
Reclassification between PPE classes 1,665,714 - 378,702 - - - 44110 2,088,526
Transfer from Level 2 - 46,959 - - - - - 46,959
Reclassifications (to)/from otherassets (94,530) - (340,875) - - (2,036) - (437,441)
Depreciation expense (1,292,328) - (202,758) (15,529) (21,664) (15,106) (12,038) (1,559,423)
Transferto councils (180,103) (1,607) (17,654) - - - - (199,364)
Net carrying amount at end of year 61,818,757 1,807,971 15,591,259 940,283 104,028 159,297 800,717 81,222,312
2017 Netcarrying amountat startof year 52,974,065 1,957,927 14,965,069 952,578 137,034 153,833 552,841 71,693,347
Additions 687,560 - 210,199 - 4,200 29,993 - 931,952
Assets recognised for the firsttime 21,420 - 12,594 - - - - 34,014
y:érrgfé‘;f‘g'?encg‘g;‘?sﬂg?rfse';jﬁyre"a'”a"on 588,732 180,406 94,375 5,364 : 807 15,772 885,456
Net revaluation increments less revaluation i i i ) 733 i i 733
decrements recognised in netresult
Assetwrite-off (118,779) - (4,709) - (76) (3,374) (1,117) (128,055)
Reclassification between PPE classes 920,736 - 281,485 - - - 16,760 1,218,981
Transferfrom Level 2 - 38,052 - - - - 68 38,120
Depreciation expense (1,304,913) - (201,224) (15,258) (21,391) (15,010) (11,376) (1,569,172)
Transferto councils (34,308) (147) (6,223) - - - - (40,678)
Transferfrom councils 846 23 - - - - - 869
Net carrying amount at end of year 53,735,359 2,176,261 15,351,566 942,684 120,500 166,249 572,948 73,065,567

Parcels of land are transferred fromLAFFRW (level 2) to Land Under Roads (level 3) w hen construction begins. Refer Note 12 for RMS policy for determining w hen transfers are deemed to have occurred.
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16. Restricted Assets

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 369,268 334,013

Holders of E-tags provide aninitial amountas a securitydepositfor the use of the actual E-tag. The depositis refundable
upon closure ofthe associated E-tag account. Monies received for these deposits of $56.4 million (2017: $55.2 million) are
held within the Treasury Banking System. Transactions on this accountare restricted to activity relating to E-Tag deposits.

Funds administered on behalfofthe Maritime Waterways fund are restricted to activity relating to the maritime transactions.
The monies of $265.4 million (2017:$226.6 million) are held within Westpac Bank Accounts that are included in the Treasury
Banking System. They are controlled by RMS and are covered by Section 42 of the Ports and Maritime Administration Act
1995.

Funds relating to land acquisitions bythe state, the authority of the state are required to keep the moneyin a fund for the
person entitled to the compensation concerned. Monies received for these deposits of $47.5 million (2017:$43.5 million) are
held within the Treasury Banking System. Transactions on this accountare restricted to activity relating to land acquisitions.

Funds administered on behalfofthe Tow Truck Industry Fund and are restricted to activity relating to the fund. The balance
of $NIL this financial year (2017: $8.5 million) is due to the Tow Truck accountownership being transferred to the DFSI on 15
October 2017. Transactions on this accountare restricted to activity relating to Tow Truck Licensing.

Rental bonds are held againstRMS properties thatare leased to various customers. The funds are interest-bearing and are
due to customers atthe end of the lease period. Monies received for these deposits 0of $0.01 million (2017: $0.2 million) are
held within Westpac Bank Accounts that are included in the Treasury Banking System. Transactions onthese accounts are
restricted to rental payments.
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17. Payables
2018 2017
$'000 $'000
(i) Current payables
Accrued expenses
- Work carried out by councils 151,776 135,429
- Works contract expenditure 406,475 415,772
- Other (including non-works contracts) 264,512 252,117
Trade creditors* 108,790 169,350
Creditors arising from compulsoryacquisitions 236,098 115,176
Personnel services 71,949 61,956
Other 97,775 88,519
Current payables 1,337,375 1,238,319
(i) Non-current payables
Personnel services 5,349 7,469
Other 3,811 7,623
Non-current payables 9,160 15,092

*The average credit period on purchases ofgoods is 30 days. RMS has financial risk managementpolicies in place to ensure

that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe.

Recognition and Measurement

Payables representliabilities forgoods and services provided to RMS and other amounts, including interest. Short-term

payables with no stated interestrate are measured atthe original invoice amountwhere the effect of discounting is

immaterial.

Payables are recognised initiallyatfair value. Subsequentmeasurementis atamortised costusing the effective interest

method.

Subsequentto the commencementofthe Government Sector EmploymentAct2013,the RMS Group of employees were
transferred to TransportService. Accordingly, employee related provisions are no longer recognised and instead disclosure

reflects the personnel services payable to Transport Service.

Details regarding creditrisk, liquidityrisk and marketrisk, including a maturity analysis ofthe above payables are disclosedin

Note 30.
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18. Borrowings

2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000
(i) Current - Unsecured
Finance lease - Sydney Harbour Tunnel 22(c) 60,558 53,680
Current borrowings 60,558 53,680
(ii) Non-current - Unsecured
Finance lease - Sydney Harbour Tunnel 22(c) 244575 305,133
Non-current borrowings 244,575 305,133

Details regarding creditrisk, liquidityrisk and marketrisk, including maturityanalysis ofthe above borrowings are disclosed in

Note 30.

Recognition and Measurement

Finance lease liabilities are recognised in accordance with AASB117 Leases. Minimum lease payments made under finance
leases are apportioned between the interestexpense and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance expense s
allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a consistentperiodic rate of intereston the remaining
balance of the liability.

Changes inliabilities arising from financing activities:

$'000 1 July 2017 Cash Non-cash 30 June 2018
Lease liability 358,813 (53,680) - 305,133
Total 358,813 (53,680) - 305,133

Fnancial guarantees

A financial guarantee contractis a contract that requires the issuerto make specified payments to reimburse the holderfora
loss itincurs because a specified debtor fails to make paymentwhen due in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debtinstrument.

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a liabilityat the time the guarantee is issued and initiallyrecognised atfair
value plus,inthe case of financial guarantees notat fair value through profit or loss, directlyattributable transaction costs,

where material. After initial recognition, the liabilityis measured atthe higher of the amountdetermined in accordance with
AASB 137 Provisions, ContingentLiabilities and Contingent Assets and the amountinitiallyrecognised, less accumulated

amortisation, where appropriate.

RMS carries outminorworks contracts for entities outside ofthe NSW public sector. In order to tender for the contracts and
remain on an equal footing, RMS is required to lodge a security depositin the form of bank guarantee. Underthe Public
Authorities and (Financial Arrangements) Act 1987, RMS has an approved limitfrom TCorp of $3.0 million which expired on
30 June 2018.

RMS has reviewed its financial guarantees and determined thatthere is no material liabilityto be recognised for financial
guarantee contracts as at 30 June 2018 and as at 30 June 2017. Refer to note 23 regarding disclosures on contingent
liabilities.
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19. Provisions

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
(i) Current provisions
Provision for makegood - leasehold 2,294 2,108
Provision for remediation - land 6,923 5,000
Other 7,283 -
Current provisions 16,500 7,108
(if) Non-current provisions
Provision for makegood - leasehold 11,941 10,605
Other 14,162 -
Non-current provisions 26,103 10,605
Total provisions 42,603 17,713

Movements in each class of provision during the financial year, other than employee benefits, are set out below:

Provision Provision
makegofc?dr remediatifgrrl Oy Vet

- leasehold - land
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Carrying amountatstart of year 12,713 5,000 - 17,713
Additional provisions recognised 2,565 2,785 21,445 26,795
Unused amounts reversed (867) - - (867)
Unwinding/change in the discountrate 132 - - 132
Amounts utilised (308) (862) - (1,170)
Carrying amount at end of year 14,235 6,923 21,445 42,603

The makegood leaseholds provision is calculated on all leased properties where RMS is the lessee and reflects an estimate
of the costto makegood the premises to their original condition atthe end of the lease term. The calculated provision balance
as at 30 June 2018 is based on per square metre rates ranging from $103 to $228 (2017: $101 to $222), adjusted by CPI of
2.25% (2017: 2.25%) and discounted atan average rate of 2.14% (2017: 1.85%). The level of the provision is reviewed at the
end of each year.

Recognition and Measurement

Provisions are recognised when RMS has a presentlegal or constructive obligation as aresultof a pastevent; itis probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and a reliable estimate can be made of the amountofthe
obligation.

Any provisions for restructuring are recognised onlywhen the organisation has a detailed formal plan and has raised a valid
expectation in those affected by the restructuring that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implementthe plan or
announcing its main features to those affected.

If the effect of the time value of moneyis material, provisions are discounted ata pre-tax rate that reflects the current market
assessments ofthe time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage oftime (i.e. unwinding ofdiscountrate) is recognised as afinance cost.

A provision has been made for the presentvalue of anticipated costs of future environmental restoration, make good leases
and land restorations. The calculation ofthis provision requires assumptions such as application of environmental legislation,
communityexpectations, available technologies and costestimates. These uncertainties mayresultin future actual
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19. Provisions (continued)

expenditure differing from the amounts currentlyprovided. The provision recognised is periodicallyreviewed and updated
based on the facts and circumstances available atthe time. Changes to the estimated future costs are recognised inthe
statementoffinancial position by adjusting both the expense and/or asset(ifapplicable) and the provision

20. Other liabilities

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
(i) Current liabilities - other
Statutory creditors 18,972 11,551
Unearnedrenton M5 Motorway 513 513
Sydney Harbour Tunnel tax liabilities 4,525 2,153
Income received in advance 51,245 17,871
Holding accounts 162,216 155,711
Deferred revenue - reimbursementon private sector provided infrastructure 19,030 19,030
Priority liston moorings 487 457
Wetland security deposits* 1,524 1,676
Boating fees in advance** 33,619 34,617
Current liabilities - other 292,131 243,579
(i) Non-current liabilities - other
Unearned renton M5 motorway 3,823 4,336
Sydney Harbour Tunnel tax liabilities 15,695 19,482
Income received in advance 68,851 70,293
Deferred revenue - reimbursementon private sector provided infrastructure 512,021 531,051
Boating fees in advance 34,227 26,959
Non-current liabilities - other 634,617 652,121

*This amount mainly represents cash deposits, in lieu of bank guarantees, received fromthe developer of King Street Wharf, as security over
the completion of specific stages of the construction project.

**Boating fees in advance comprises prepayments by customers forlicences, registrations and moorings for the service componentw hich
willbe provided by NSW Maritime in the future.

Additional disclosures relating to specificitems of Other Liabilities are detailed below:

2018 2017
Sydney Harbour Tunnel tax liabilities $'000 $'000
Sydney Harbour Tunnel pasttax liability 1,865 1,815
Sydney Harbour Tunnel future tax liability 2,660 338
Current 4,525 2,153
Sydney Harbour Tunnel pasttax liability 5,069 6,513
Sydney Harbour Tunnel future tax liability 10,626 12,969
Non-current 15,695 19,482

Unearned rent and deferred revenue on motorways

The land acquisition loan of $22.0 million, based on the costof land underthe M5 Motorway originallypurchased by RMS,
was repaidin June 1997 by the concession holder. The repaymentof the loanis considered to be a prepaymentof the
remaining rental over the period of the concession agreement. In accordance with AASB 117 Leases, this revenue is brought
to account over the period of the lease.

In consideration for the concession holder undertaking construction of an interchange at Moorebank (M5 Motorway
Improvements) on the M5 Motorway, the original concession period (to 14 August 2022) has been extended to 10 December
2026.
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20. Other liabilities (continued)

2018 2017

$'000 $'000

Rent earnedin prior year 17,150 16,637
Rent earnedin current year 513 513
Unearnedrentas at year end (currentand non-current) 4,337 4,850
Unearned rent 22,000 22,000

NSW Treasury has mandated the adoption of TPP 06—08 "Accounting for Privately Funded Projects"which requires revenue
to be broughtto account over the period of the concessions. Underthe various Private Sector Provided Infrastructure,
$369.9 million was received following the letting of the Lane Cove Tunnel, Cross City Tunnel and Western M7 Motorway
contracts as reimbursementofdevelopmentcosts.

In addition, as a resultof the signing ofthe NorthConnexagreementon 31 January 2015, RMS is to receive concession fees
of $358.8 million in relation to the M7 Motorway and $200.0 millioninrelation to Lane Cove Tunnel (nominal values, referto
Note 13(a)). RMS have recorded the presentvalue of these future cash flows as deferred revenue; reimbursementof
developmentcosts 0f $231.8 million (2017: $240.9 million) and the concession payments of $295.3 million (2017: $305.2
million). RMS will amortise the liabilityover the concession period. The amortisation and deferred revenue balances are
showninthe table below.

Promissorynotes are to be received in respectof M2 and Eastern Distributor. M2 promissorynotes are redeemable in 2046
and Eastern Distributor promissorynotes are redeemable in 2048. RMS have recorded the presentvalue of these future
cash flows of $3.9 million (2017:$4.0 million) as deferred revenue and will amortise the liabilityover the concession period.
The amortisation and deferred revenue balances are shown in the table below.

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Amortisation of deferred revenue in prior years 129,018 119,961
Amortisation of deferred revenue in current year 9,057 9,057
Unearned reimbursementas atyear end 231,841 240,898
\I/Q\;eeirgtgl:rr]sl\(ﬂa;n&gig:v\?:;/elopment costs for Lane Cove Tunnel, Gross City Tunnel and 369.916 369,916
Amortisation of deferred revenue in prior years 23,774 13,936
Amortisation of deferred revenue in current year 9,838 9,838
Unearned reimbursementas atyear end 295,341 305,179
Lane Cove Tunnel and M7 Motorway Concession Payments 328,953 328,953
Amortisation of deferred revenue in prior years 2,687 2,552
Amortisation of deferred revenue in current year 135 135
Unearned reimbursementas atyear end 3,869 4,004
M2 and Eastern Distributor Promissory Notes 6,691 6,691
Total Unearned reimbursement as at year end 531,051 550,081
Classified as:
Current 19,030 19,030
Non-current 512,021 531,051

Total 531,051 550,081
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21. Increasein net assets from equity transfers

Transfer of net assets

2018 2017

Notes $'000 $'000
Net assets transferred were:
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (8,708) -
Non-current assets
Land and buildings 12 (18,371) 43,065
Increase/(decrease)in net assets from equity transfer (27,079) 43,065

Recognition and Measurement

The transfer of net assets between agencies as aresultofan administrative restructure, transfers of programs/functions and
parts thereof between NSW public sector agencies are designated as contributions byowners and recognised as an
adjustmentto "Accumulated Funds". This treatmentis consistentwith AASB 1004 and Australian Interpretation 1038
Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities.

Transfers arising from an administrative restructure between not-for-profitentities and for-profitgovernmentdepartments are
recognised atthe amountat which the assetwas recognised bythe transferorimmediatelypriorto the restructure. In most
instances this will approximate fair value.

All other equity transfers are recognised atfair value, except for intangibles. Where an intangible has been recognised at
(amortised) costbythe transferor because there is no active market, RMS recognises the assetatthe transferor’s carrying
amount. Where the transferoris prohibited from recognising internallygenerated intangibles, RMS does not recognise that
asset.

2018

Land valued at $14.2m was cleared for return to the Departmentof Planning and Environmenthaving been scoped out of
future construction works. In addition, $1.0m of land was transferred outto Office of EnvironmentHeritage for compensatory
habitatloss from construction and $3.1 million ofadministrative land and buildings were transferred outto Property New
South Wales under Ministerial Order.

Cashtotalling $8.7m was transferred to the Departmentof Finance, Services and Innovation (DFSI) as a resultof an
administrative orderon 1 July 2017. Underthe order, RMS’ administrative functions in relation to tow trucks were transferred
from RMS to DFSI. The cash balance transferred was associated with those functions.

2017

Land valued at $46.7m was transferred from Sydney Harbour Foreshore Authority and RailCorp to RMS for WestConnex
construction. This is offsetby $1.3m of land transferred out to Office of EnvironmentHeritage for compensatoryhabitatloss
as a resultof road widening work and $2.4 million ofadministrative land and buildings transferred outto Property New South
Wales under Ministerial Order.
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22. Commitments for expenditure
(a) Capital Commitments

Aggregate capital expenditure for the roadworks contracted for at balance date and not provided for:

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Within one year 1,554,456 2,739,197
Later than one year and not later than five years 1,716,809 704,005
Later than five years - 151
Total (including GST) 3,271,265 3,443,353

(b) Operating lease commitments

Operating lease commitments relate to property, light and heawy motor vehicles and maritime. Operating lease commitments
are notrecognised in the financial statements as liabilities. Total operating lease commitments are as follows:

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Within one year 56,689 51,702
Later than one year and not later than five years 122,202 72,185
Later than five years 13,898 13,464
Total (including GST) 192,789 137,351
The property operating lease commitments are as follows:

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Within one year 31,686 27,826
Later than one year and not later than five years 82,001 41,684
Later than five years 9,701 12,535
Total (including GST) 123,388 82,045

In respectof property leases, RMS has various lessors with leases thathave specific lease periods ranging from one year to
20 years.

The light motor vehicle operating lease commitments are as follows:

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Within one year 8,309 10,537
Later than one year and not later than five years 7,689 9,868
Total (including GST) 15,998 20,405

The lightmotor vehicle lease is managed by SG Fleet Group Limited, a private fleet leasing companyselected underthe
Prequalification Scheme (Scheme) implemented bythe Departmentof Finance, Services and Innovation. The lease is
financed through a panel of six financing companies underthe Scheme.
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22. Commitments for expenditure (continued)

The heavy motorvehicle and heavy plantvehicle operating lease commitments are as follows:

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Within one year 16,694 13,339
Later than one year and not later than five years 32,512 20,633
Later than five years 4,197 929
Total (including GST) 53,403 34,901

The heavy motorvehicle lease is held and financed with Fleet Partners, SG Fleet Australia, Atlas Copco Australia, Capital
Finance Australiaand Kennard'’s Hire.

The total commitments detailed above include GST inputtax credits of $314.9 million (2017: $325.5 million) thatare expected
to be recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO).

Future property operating lease rentalincomes thatare not recognised in the financial statements as receivables are as
follows:

2018 2017
$'000 $'000
Within one year 43,836 48,167
Later than one year and not later than five years 135,484 130,171
Later than five years 300,678 319,799
Total (including GST) 479,998 498,137

The total commitments detailed above include GST amountof$43.6 million (2017:$45.3 million) thatare expected to be
payable to the ATO.

(c) Sydney Harbour Tunnel —finance lease liability

2018 2017

Notes $'000 $'000
Future minimum lease payments under finance lease, together with the present
value of the net minimum lease payments are, as follows:
Within one year 30(g) 81,794 79,132
Later than one year and not later than five years 30(9) 277,613 344,046
Later than five years 30(9) - 15,361
Minimum lease payments 30(9) 359,407 438,539
Less:future finance charges (54,274) (79,726)
Presentvalue of minimum lease payments 305,133 358,813
The presentvalue of finance lease commitments is as follows:
Within one year 60,558 53,680
Later than one year and not later than five years 244,575 289,980
Later than five years - 15,153
Presentvalue of finance lease commitments 305,133 358,813
Classified as:
Current 18(i) 60,558 53,680
Non-current 18(ii) 244,575 305,133

Total 305,133 358,813
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22. Commitments for expenditure (continued)

In June 1987, RMS and Sydney Harbour Tunnel Corporation (SHTC) entered into an Ensured Revenue Stream (ERS)
Agreement, whereby RMS agreed to make payments to SHTC to enable it to meetits financial obligations arising from the
operation and maintenance ofthe tunnel and repaymentof principal and intereston the funds it borrowed for the design and
construction ofthe tunnel.

Following the guidelines setoutin NSW Treasury Policy Paper 06—08 “Accounting for Privately Financed Projects”, RMS has
accounted for the Sydney Harbour Tunnel and related ERS Agreementas a finance lease arrangementin accordance with
the requirements of AASB 117 Leases.

The carrying amountof the Sydney Harbour Tunnel finance lease liabilityhas been calculated based on the presentvalue of
the minimum lease liability, discounted atthe interestrate implicitin the ERS Agreement.

Contingentlease payments include increasesin the ERS liabilityresulting from fluctuations in the weighted indexcomponent
of the ERS Agreement(e.g. CPI fluctuations) and adjustments to the amount payable resulting from ERS clause 4.1(a)
renegotiations such as GST on the tunnel tolls. Contingentlease payments are charged as expensesin the period they are
incurred and amounted to $1.0 million for the year ending 30 June 2018 (2017:$2.4 million).

23. Contingent assets and contingent liabilities

There are several significantcontractual disputes with an estimated total contingentliabilityof $1.8 million (2017:$25.1
million). There are a number of contractual claims thathave arisen from the normal course ofbusiness after the balance
date, relating to matters occurring during the financial year. There is significantuncertaintyas to whether a future liabilitywill
ariseinrespectto theseitems. The amountofthe liability that may arise cannotbe measured reliablyat this time.

Compulsoryproperty acquisition matters under litigation have an estimated contingentliabilityof $723.1 million (2017: $676.2
million). These amounts are netof Treasury Managed Fund (TMF) reimbursement.

RMS has a number ofenvironmental matters emerging from its normal road construction works. There is significant
uncertainty as to whether any future liability willemerge in respectofthese matters as they are in early state of works, and
cannotbe reliablymeasured atthis time.

RMS has certain obligations under contracts with private sector parties with the performance ofthese obligations guaranteed
by the State. The currentguarantees outstanding are for the Sydney Harbour Tunnel,the M2 Motorway, the Eastern
Distributor, the Cross City Tunnel, the Western Orbital, the Lane Cove Tunnel, NorthConnexand WestConnex. These
guarantees are unlikelyto ever be exercised.

24. Budget Review

The budgeted amounts are drawn from the original budgeted financial statements presented to Parliamentin respectofthe
reporting period. Subsequentamendmentsto the original budget (e.g. adjustmentfor transfers of functions between entities
as a resultof Administrative Arrangement Orders) are not reflected in the budgeted amounts. Major variances between the
original budgeted amounts and the actual amounts disclosed on the primaryfinancial statements are explained below.
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24. Budget Review (continued)

Netresult

The actual net surplus resultwas lower than budgetby $1,178 million. These variances are mainlydue to changes that

occurred during the year as detailed in the table below.

Net surplus result as per the Budget

Variance between budget and actuals comprises:

Lower capital funding from TINSW and external sources due to lower capital works spend
Higherthan budgeted write-downs ofland acquired for future roadworks

Higherthan budgeted road and bridge assets transferred to councils

Lower than budgeted assettransfers from TINSW, mainlyfrom the B-Line project
Reclassification of capital works program from State Roads to Local Roads

Lowerthan budgeted NorthConnexcontributions funding from TINSW

Higherthan budgeted Service NSW fee for service payments

Higherthan budgeted non-cash amortisation expenses of IT and otherassets
Higherthan budgeted Bridges Rebuilding Program, mostlyfrom additional Federal funding
Lower than budgeted skill hire expense

Lower than budgeted Boating NOW Local Council payments, re-profiled into future years

Higherthan budgeted investmentearnings in NSW Treasuryand T-Corp investments from positive
marketperformance, and insurance claimsinterest

Unbudgeted insurance claims revenue for the Hunter Expressway
Higherthan budgeted capitalisation of maintenance works
Higherthan budgeted Motor Vehicle Weight Tax collections

Unbudgeted infrastructure assets recognised for the firsttime
Lowerthan budgeted assetwrite-off

Lower than budgeted personnel services expense

Lowerthan budgeted depreciation expense, mainlydue to the conditions-based assessmentin the
current year road and bridge assets comprehensive revaluation

Other budgetvariances

Net surplus result as per the Actuals

The employee and personnel service related expenses variance is explained below:

Employee related and personnel service expenses as per the Budget

Skill hire expenses reclassified to Other Operating Expense

Variance comprises:

Lowerthan budgeted non-controllable non-cash actuarial adjustments for personnel service
Lowerthan budgeted employee numbers

Higherthan budgeted redundancyexpense

Total variance

Actual employee related and personnel service expenses after adjusting variances as per the
financial statements

$'M
4,498

(1,135)
(163)
(129)

(84)
(74)
(38)
(22)
(24)
(16)
6
15

13

24
28
42
49
79
86

164

3,319

$M
534

(35)

499
(32)
(68)

14
(86)

413
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24. Budget Review (continued)

Assets and liabilities

Total current assets are higherthan budgetby $627 million largelydue to higher cash and cash equivalents of $268 million
from the grant funding of $128 million being fullydrawn down as at 30 June 2018 and cash held to meetcash flow demands
in July ($140 million). Currentreceivables were higher than budgeted by $228 million mainlydue to higher than budgeted
prepaymentof contract works ($145 million), unbudgeted Natural Disaster funding receivable ($50 million), and recoverables
from other state agencies for the Schofields project($13 million). The re-classification of Lane Cove Tunnel concession fees
receivable of $147 million to current has also contributed to the higherthan budgeted total current assets, offsetby lower
than budgeted non-currentassetheld for sale of $24 million.

Total non-currentassets are higherthan budgetby $3,512 million primarilydue to unbudgeted revaluationincrements of
$5.0 billion as aresultof the incorporation of condition assessmentin the current year comprehensive revaluation ofroad and
bridge assets. This is offsetby the carry forward of $1.1b of capital work spend to the 2018-19 financial year.

Total liabilities are higherthan budgetby $459 million. This is largelydue to higherthan budgeted accrual activities ($169
million), compulsoryacquisition activities ($143 million), prepaid E-tag and toll deposits ($24 million), development
contributions for major projects ($36 million), and unbudgeted provision of $14m from environmental claims.

Cash flows
Actual cash position at30 June 2018 shows $268 million favourable variance.

$'M
Closing cash and cash equivalents as per the Budget 619
Variance comprises:
Lower than budgeted cash flows used in investing activities mainlydue to lower cash outlays on capital 830
spending
Favourable opening cash position atthe beginning ofthe year due to re-profiling of capital projects in the 280
prioryear
Lower than budgeted netcash inflows from operating activities mainlydue to lower capital grants received (834)
dueto capital re-profiling
Unbudgeted cash outflow from equity transfer (8)

Closing cash and cash equivalents as per the Actuals 887
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25. Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to net result

Reconciliation of cash flows from operating activities to the net resultas reportedin the Statementof Comprehensive Income

as follows:
2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000
Net cash inflows / (outflows) from operating activities 5,253,210 4,191,091
Depreciation and amortisation 2(d) (1,632,294) (1,638,951)
M2 and Eastern Distributor PromissoryNotes 2(),3(b) 5,000 (1,260)
Non-cash personnel services expense (17,931) (12,209)
Rightto receive on PSPI 13(a) 253,337 233,412
Assets free of charge 77,567 88,151
Other non-cash items 111,847 105,660
Roads and bridges transferred from councils 12 - 869
Roads and bridges transferred to councils 2(e) (199,364) (40,678)
Net revaluation increment/ (decrement) recognised in netresult 5 (389,598) (367,352)
Net gain/ (loss) on sale ofnon-currentassets held forsale 4 3,077 134,944
Increase/(decrease) in receivables 90,416 328,200
Increase/(decrease) in inventories (914) (682)
(Increase)/decrease in payables (16,381) (252,734)
(Increase)/decrease in provisions (19,756) 641
Assets written off 5 (198,593) (262,709)
Net gain/ (loss) on sale of property, plantand equipment 4 (183) (7,004)
Reconciliation to net result 3,319,440 2,499,389
26. Non-cash financing and investing activities
2018 2017
Notes $'000 $'000
M2 and Eastern Distributor promissorynotes 2(),3(b) 5,000 (1,260)
Roads transferred from councils 12 - 869
Roads transferred to councils 2(e) (199,364) (40,678)
Rightto receive on PSPI 3(f) 253,337 233,412
Assets recognised for the firsttime 3(f) 49,345 34,014
Assets free of charge 25 77,567 88,151
Assets written off 5 (198,593) (262,709)
Equity transfers 21 (18,371) 43,065
Resources received free of charge 3(f) 27,036 22,980
Net revaluation incrementrecognised in netresult 6 (389,598) (367,352)
Non-cash financing and investing activities (393,641) (249,508)
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27. Administered income and expenses

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Transfer receipts
Taxes, fees and fines 627,656 604,472
Stamp duty 835,064 826,277
Motor vehicle weighttax and fines 2,146,894 2,079,195
Other 58,915 55,034
Administered income 3,668,529 3,564,978
Administered income less expenses 3,668,529 3,564,978

Recognition and Measurement

RMS administers, butdoes notcontrol, the collection of various fees, fines and levies on behalf of the Crown Entity. Monies
collected are not recognised as RMS’ revenue but are separatelydisclosed inthe Administered Income and Expenses note.
RMS is accountable for the transactions relating to these administered activities butdoes nothave the discretion, for
example,to deploythe resources forthe achievementofits own objectives. Expenses incurred in collecting monies on behalf
of the Crown Entity are recognised as RMS’ expenses. The accrual basis ofaccounting and all applicable accounting
standards have been adopted.

Roads and Maritime Services received Cabinetapproval to establish arefund scheme and in-principle approval of
approximately$42 million to enable Roads and Maritime Services to provide three years of refunds to affected customers
where the legislated cap was notapplied to their primaryproducer heavy vehicle registration charge. As the refund relates to
the registration fee that RMS administers on behalfofthe Crown,the impactis a decrease inthe Administered Income in this
note. An associated administered liability (current provision) has been reflected in the Administered Liabilitydisclosure in
Note 28 below.

28. Administered assets and liabilities

2018 2017

$'000 $'000
Remitting account, cashin transitand cash on hand 37,979 33,683
Administered assets 37,979 33,683
Holding accounts (currentliabilities-other) 37,979 33,683
Provision (current) 41,678 -
Other* 240,666 232,377
Administered liabilities 320,323 266,060

* The amount of multiple licence fees issued inthe currentyear is approximately $147.8 million (2017: $144.2 million). The maximum period
of licenceis 10 years. Firstyear licences are not deemed to be a liability. The outstanding liability above represents the remaining 9 years.

Recognition and Measurement

RMS administers, butdoes notcontrol, the collection of various fees, fines and levies on behalfof the Crown Entity.
Transactions and balances relating to the administered activities are notrecognised as RMS’ assets and liabilities, butare
disclosed as “Administered Assets and Liabilities”. The holding accounts and remitting accountbalances above represent
fees collected by motorregistries thathave not been remitted to the third party they are being administered for (generally
NSW Treasury).

Refer to Note 27 for further details ofthe current provision recognisedin2017-18.
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29. Native title

The Commonwealth’s legislation (Native Title Act) and the New South Wales statute (Native Title (New South Wales) Act)
have financial implications for New South Wales Governmentagencies generally. RMS has undertaken an assessmentofthe
impactof this legislation on its financial position as at30 June 2018. This assessmentindicates there were no Native Title

Claims which had a financial impactduring the financial year ending 30 June 2018 (2017:none).

30. Financial instruments

RMS’ principal financial instruments are outlined below. These financial instruments arise directlyfrom RMS’ operations or
are required to finance RMS’ operations. RMS does notenter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative purposes.

RMS’ mainrisks arising from financial instruments are outlined below, together with RMS’ objectives, policies and processes
for measuring and managing risk. Further quantitative and qualitative disclosures are included throughoutthis financial

report.

The ChiefExecutive has overall responsibilityfor the establishmentand oversightofrisk managementand reviews and
agrees policies for managing each ofthese risks. Risk managementpolicies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by RMS, to setrisklimits and controls and to monitor risks. Compliance with policies is reviewed bythe entity on a

continuous basis.

(@) Hnancial instrument categories

Carrying Carrying
amount amount
2018 2017
Note Category $'000 $'000
FHnancial assets
Class:
Cash and cash equivalents 8 N/A 886,839 748,652
Receivables® 9 Loans and receivables (atamortised cost) 346,189 416,679
Financial assets atfair value 10 Al fa". vg_lue throug_h profitor loss designated 111,565 104,857
uponinitial recognition
Other financial assets 11 Loans and receivables (atamortised cost) 369,879 390,532
1,714,472 1,660,720
Financial liabilities
Class:
Payables2 17,20 Financial liabilities measured atamortised cost 1,528,971 1,430,757
Borrowings 18 Financial liabilities measured atamortised cost 305,133 358,813
1,834,104 1,789,570

1. Excludes statutory receivables and prepayments (i.e. not w ithin scope of AASB 7).

2. Excludes statutory payables and unearned revenue (i.e. not w ithin scope of AASB 7).

(b) Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

A financial assetis derecognised in the following circumstances when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial assets expire; or if RMS transfers the financial asset:
e Where substantially all the risks and rewards have been transferred.
e Where RMS has not transferred substantially all the risks and rewards, if the entity has not retained control.
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Where RMS has neithertransferred nor retained substantiallyall the risks and rewards or transferred control, the assetis
recognised to the extent of RMS’ continuing involvementin the asset.

A financial liabilityis derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. When a
lenderreplaces an existing financial liabilitywith one on significantlydifferentor modified terms, RMS derecognises the
original liabilityand recognises the new liability. It then recognises the difference in their carrying amounts in the net result.

(c) Marketrisk

Market riskis the risk that the fair value or future cash flows ofa financial instrumentwill fluctuate because of changes in
marketprices.RMS’ exposures to market risk are primarilythrough interestrate risk on borrowings and other price risks
associated with the movementin the unitprice of the Hour-Glass Investmentfacilities. RMS has no exposure to foreign
currency riskand does notenter into commodity contracts.

The effect on profit and equity due to a reasonablypossible change inrisk variable is outlined in the table below, for interest
rate riskand other price risk. A reasonablypossible change inrisk variable has been determined after taking into accountthe
economic environmentin which RMS operates and the time frame for the assessment(i.e. until the end of the next annual
reporting period). The sensitivityanalysis is based onrisk exposuresin existence atthe Statement of Financial Position date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis as for2017 and assumes thatall other variables remain constant.

0] Interest raterisk
Exposureto interestrate risk arises primarilythrough RMS’ interestbearing liabilities. This riskis minimised byundertaking
mainlyfixed rate borrowings.

RMS do not accountfor any fixed rate financial instruments atfair value through profit and loss or as available for sale.
Therefore, for these financial instruments, a change in interestrates would not affect profit or loss or equity. A reasonably
possible change of +/— one per centis used, consistentwith currenttrends in interestrates. The basis will be reviewed
annuallyand amended where there is a structural change in the level of interestrate volatility.

The impacton RMS’ surplus/deficitand equity is setout in the table below assuming a 1 per cent change in variable interest
rates.

-1% 1%
Carrying
amount  Surplus/Deficit Equity  Surplus/Deficit Equity
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fnancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 369,284 (3,693) (3,693) 3,693 3,693
Financial assets atfair value 111,565 (1,116) (1,116) 1,116 1,116
Other financial assets 369,879 (3,699) (3,699) 3,699 3,699
850,728 (8,508) (8,508) 8,508 8,508
-1% 1%
Carrying
amount  Surplus/Deficit Equity  Surplus/Deficit Equity
2017 2017 2017 2017 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Fnancial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 333,878 (3,339) (3,339) 3,339 3,339
Financial assets atfair value 104,857 (1,049) (1,049) 1,049 1,049
Other financial assets 390,532 (3,905) (3,905) 3,905 3,905

829,267 (8,293) (8,293) 8,293 8,293
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30. Financial instruments (continued)
(i) Other price risk — TCorp Hour-Glass facilities
Exposure to ‘Other Price Risk’ primarilyarises through the investmentin the TCorp Hour-Glass Investmentfacilities, which

are held for strategic rather than trading purposes. RMS has no directequity investments and holds unitsin the following
Hour-Glass Investment Trusts:

Facility Investment sectors Investment 2018 2017
horizon $'000 $'000

Cash facility Cash,moneymarketinstruments upto 1.5 - -
years

Strategic Cash Cash,moneymarketinstruments, interestrate l5yearsto 3 i )

facility securities, bank floating rate notes years

Cash,moneymarketinstruments, Australian and

Medium te.rm international bonds, listed property, and Australian 3yearsto 7 76,563 72,937
growth facility shares years

Lona term arowth Cash,moneymarketinstruments, Australian and 7 vears and

facil?ty 9 international bonds, listed property, and Australian var 35,002 31,920

shares

The unit price of each facility is equal to the total fair value of the net assets held bythe facility divided by the total number of
units onissue for that facility. Unit prices are calculated and published daily.

NSW TCorp is the trustee for each of the above facilities and is required to act in the bestinterestof the unitholders and to
administerthe trusts in accordance with the trust deeds. As trustee, TCorp has appointed external managersto manage the
performance and risks of each facility in accordance with a mandate agreed by the parties. TCorp has also leveraged off
internal expertise to manage certain fixed income assets for the Hour-Glass facilities. A significant portion ofthe
administration ofthe facilities is outsourced to an external custodian.

Investmentin the Hour-Glass facilities limits RMS’ exposure to risk, as it allows diversification across a pool of funds with
different investmenthorizons and a mix of investments.

NSW TCorp provides sensitivityanalysis information for each of the Investmentfacilities, using historicallybased volatility
information collected over a ten year period, quoted at two standard deviations (i.e. 95% probability). The TCorp Hour-Glass
Investmentfacilities are designated atfair value through profit or loss and therefore any change in unit price impacts directly
on profit (rather than equity). A reasonablypossible change is based on the percentage change in unit price (as advised by
TCorp) multiplied bythe redemption value as at 30 June each year for each facility (balance from Hour-Glass statement).

Ch_ange in
Facility unit 2018 2017
price $'000 $'000
Cash facility +- 1% - -
Strategic Cash facility +- 1% - -
Medium term growth facility +/- 6% 4,594 4,376

Long term growth facility +/- 15% 5,250 4,788




Roads and Maritime Services
Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 30 June 2018

30. Financial instruments (continued)

(d) Credit risk

Creditrisk arises when there is the possibilityof RMS’ debtors defaulting on their contractual obligations, resultingin a
financialloss to RMS. The maximum exposure to creditriskis generallyrepresented bythe carrying amountof the financial

assets (netofany allowance forimpairment).

Creditrisk arises from the financial assets of RMS, including cash, receivables and authoritydeposits. RMS does not hold
any collateral and has notgranted any financial guarantees.

Creditrisk associated with RMS financial assets, other than receivables, is managed through the selection of counterparties
and establishmentofminimum creditrating standards. RMS deposits held with NSW TCorp are guaranteed by the State.

Banks  Government Other Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2018 Cashand cashequivalents 886,598 - 241 886,839
Receivables - 126,481 219,708 346,189

Other financial assets - - 369,879 369,879
Financial assets atfair value - 111,565 - 111,565

Total financial assets 886,598 238,046 589,828 1,714,472

2017 Cashand cashequivalents 748,056 - 596 748,652
Receivables - 88,889 327,790 416,679
Financial assets atfair value - 104,857 - 104,857

Other financial assets - - 390,532 390,532

Total financial assets 748,056 193,746 718,918 1,660,720

(i) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash comprises cash on hand and bank balances within the NSW Treasury Banking System. Interest is earned on daily bank
balances atthe monthlyaverage NSW TCorp 11am unofficial cash rate, adjusted fora managementfee to NSW Treasury.

(i) Receivables — trade debtors
All trade debtors are recognised as amounts receivable atbalance date. Collectability of trade debtors is reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Procedures as established in the Treasurer’s Directions are followed to recover outstanding amounts,
including letters of demand. Debts which are known to be uncollectible are written off. An allowance forimpairmentis raised
when there is objective evidence that the entity will not be able to collect allamounts due. This evidence includes past
experience, and currentand expected changes in economic conditions and debtor creditratings. No interestis earned on
trade debtors. Sales are generallymade on 30 day terms.

RMS is not materiallyexposed to concentrations of creditriskto a single trade debtor or group of debtors. Based on past
experience, debtors that are not pastdue (2018: $33.2 million; 2017:$30.5 million) and pastdue (2018:$17.3 million; 2017:
$13.5 million) are notconsidered impaired and together these represent83.5 per cent (2017:81.5 per cent) of the total trade
debtors. There are no debtors which are currently not pastdue or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated.

The onlyfinancial assets thatare pastdue or impaired are “sales ofgoods and services”, “other” and “property debtors” in the
“receivables” categoryof the Statementof Financial Position (referto Note 9).
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

Past due but

not Cc_mmd_erzgjk Total*
impaired* 'mpaire
$'000 $'000 $'000
2018 < 3 months overdue 13,170 707 13,877
3 months - 6 months overdue 836 599 1,435
> 6 months overdue 3,249 8,638 11,887
2017 <3 months overdue 9,814 485 10,299
3 months - 6 months overdue 1,737 525 2,262
> 6 months overdue 1,921 9,000 10,921

*Each column in the table reports “gross receivables”.

*The ageing analysis excludes statutory receivables, as these are not w ithin the scope of AASB 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures and
excludes receivables that are not past due and notimpaired. Therefore, the “total” willnot reconcile to the receivables total recognised in the
Statement of Financial Position.

(iii) Other financial assets
The repaymentof the Sydney Harbour Tunnel loan ranks behind all creditors to be paid. Redemption ofthe M2 and Eastern
Distributor promissorynotes is dependentupon counterparties generating sufficientcash flows to enable the face value to be
repaid.

(iv) RMS Deposits
RMS has placed funds on depositwith highlyrated financial institutions. These deposits are similarto moneymarketor bank
deposits and can be placed “at call” or for a fixed term. For fixed term deposits, the interestrate payable by TCorp is
negotiated initiallyand is fixed for the term of the deposit, while the interestrate payable on at call deposits can vary. The
deposits atbalance date were earning an average interestrate of 2.58 per cent (2017: 2.97 per cent), while over the year the
weighted average interestrate was 2.54 per cent (2017:3.07 per cent) on a weighted average balance during the year of
$488.1 million (2017:$406.8 million). None ofthese assets are pastdue orimpaired.
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30. Financial instruments (continued)
(e) Fair value

Financial instruments are generallyrecognised atamortised cost, with the exception of the TCorp Hour-Glass facilities, which
are measured atfair value. As discussed, the value of the Hour-Glass Investments is based on RMS’ share ofthe value of
the underlying assets ofthe facility, based on the marketvalue. All of the Hour-Glass facilities are valued using “redemption”
pricing.

The future cash flows of the promissorynotes and concession payments are valued atamortised cost, using their effective
interestrates.

The fair value of the Lane Cove Tunnel concession payments is $149.3 million (2017:$187.7 million) which differs from the
carrying amountof $146.9 million (2017:$183.1 million) (referto Note 11) and is determined using effective interestrate 5.63
per cent (2017:5.63 percent).

The fair values of the M2 Motorway and Eastern Distributor promissorynotes are $111.5 million (2017:$75.9 million) which
differs from their carrying amountof $57.5 million (2017:$52.5 million) (referto Note 11). The M2 Motorway promissory
notes are determined using effective interestrate of 10.61 per cent (2017:10.61 per cent) and Eastern Distributor promissory
notes at 10.39 per cent (2017: 10.39 per cent).

The interestrates sensitivityanalysis forthese future cash flows are disclosed in Note 30(c)(i).

(f) Fair value recognised in statement of financial position

RMS uses the following hierarchyfor disclosing the fair value of financial instruments byvaluation technique:
e Levell — Derived from quoted prices in active markets for identical assets/liabilities.
e Level 2 — Derived from inputs other than quoted prices that are observable directly or indirectly.
e Level 3 — Derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset/liability not based on observable
market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2018 2018 2018 2018
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fnancial assets at fair value
TCorp Hour-Glass Investment Facilities - 111,565 - 111,565
- 111,565 - 111,565
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2017 2017 2017 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Fnancial assets at fair value
TCorp Hour-Glass Investment Facilities - 104,857 - 104,857
- 104,857 - 104,857

The table above only includes financial assets, as no financial liabilities were measured atfair value in the Statementof
Financial Position. There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 during the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017:none).
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30. Financial instruments (continued)
(9) Liquidity risk

RMS manage liquidityrisk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities by
continuouslymonitoring forecastand actual cash flows.

Liquidityriskis the riskthat RMS will be unable to meetits paymentobligations when theyfall due. RMS continuously
manages risk through monitoring future cash flows and maturities planning to ensure adequate holding of high qualityliquid
assets. The objective is to maintain a balance between continuityof funding and flexibility through the use of overdrafts, loans
and other advances.

Until 30 June 2018, RMS had a Come and Go Facility with TCorp valued at $110 million for cash managementpurposes.
This year the facility was not used to fund shortfalls, incurring a total interest charge of zero. The facility has notbeen
renewed going forward. Instead, Treasury's cash managementreforms allow RMS to access an emergencycash injection to
fulfil funding requirements under anyextreme situations.

Fnancing arrangements

2018 2017

$'000 $'000

Unrestricted access was available atthe Statementof Financial Position date to the come i i
and go facility

Total facility 110,000 110,000

Used at Statementof Financial Position date - -

Unused at Statement of Fnancial Position date 110,000 110,000

During the currentand prior years, there were no defaults on any loans payable. No assets have been pledged as collateral.
RMS’ exposure to liquidityriskis deemed insignificantbased on prior periods’ data and currentassessmentofrisk.

The liabilities are recognised foramounts due to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether or not invoiced.
Amounts owing to suppliers (which are unsecured) are settled in accordance with TC 11/12 “Payment of Accounts”. For small
business suppliers,where terms are notspecified, paymentis made notlaterthan 30 days from the date of receiptof a
correctly rendered invoice. For other suppliers, iftrade terms are not specified, paymentis made no later than the end of the
month following the month in which an invoice or a statementis received. For small business suppliers, where paymentis not
made within the specified time period, simple interestmustbe paid automaticallyunless an existing contract specifies
otherwise. The average rate of interestapplied during the year was 9.7% (2017:9.8%).
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30. Financial instruments (continued)

(g9) Liquidity risk (cont’d)

The table below summarises the maturity profile of RMS’ financial liabilities, together with the interestrate exposure.
Maturity analysis and interest rate exposure of financial liabilities

Interest rate exposure Maturity dates
Weighted . Fixed . .
erectve o, amount TS ol Re | bearng  <lyear  1-Syears  >Syears
Rate (%) Rate
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2018 Payables
Trade creditors - 108,790 - - 108,790 108,790 - -
Accrued expenses - 822,764 - - 822,764 822,764 - -
Other payables - 337,684 - - 337,684 333,873 3,811 -
Personnel services - 77,298 - - 77,298 71,949 5,349 -
Sydney Harbour Tunnel tax liability - 21,748 - - 21,748 4,526 16,557 665
Holding accounts - 162,216 - - 162,216 162,216 - -
Borrowings
Finance leases 7.70 359,407 359,407 - - 81,794 277,613 -
2017 Payables
Trade creditors - 169,350 - - 169,350 169,350 - -
Accrued expenses - 803,318 - - 803,318 803,318 - -
Other payables - 211,318 - - 211,318 203,695 7,623 -
Personnel services - 69,425 - - 69,425 61,956 7,469 -
Sydney Harbour Tunnel tax liability - 23,563 - - 23,563 4,475 18,422 666
Holding accounts - 155,711 - - 155,711 155,711 - -
Borrowings
Finance leases 7.70 438,539 438,539 - - 79,132 344,046 15,361

*The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class offinancial liabilities and therefore will notreconcile to the Statementof Position.
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31. Related Party Disclosures
(a) Key Management Personnel Compensation

During the year, RMS incurred $4.4 million (2017:$3.9 million) in respectofthe key managementpersonnel services thatare
provided by TransportService NSW. The amountincurred excludes long service leave and defined benefitsuperannuation
scheme benefits assumed bythe Crown Entity in accordance with NSWTC 16-12 Related party disclosures.

(b) Key management personnel transactions, outstanding balances or commitments with the reporting entity and
its parent during the financial year

Key managementpersonnel did nothave material transactions, outstanding balances or commitments with RMS or its parent
during the financial year.

(c) Transactions with Government Related Entities during the financial year

During the 2017-18 financial year, RMS entered into the following transactions with other NSW governmentagencies. Senior
Managementconsiders these within the normal course ofbusiness and, in addition to the details onthese transactions
provided in previous notes, makes the following qualitative disclosure:

e Transportfor NSW (TINSW - RMS’ parent entity) - Grants revenue and recoupment/repaymentofcosts incurred by
RMS/TINSW on behalf of TINSW/RMS.

e TransportShared Services - charges for personnel services, finance, human resources, and information technology
senvices, as well as personnel services revenue for seconded staffto other NSW governmentagencies.

e Sydney Motorway Corporation (SMC) - WestConnexdevelopmentcostdelivered and recorded as a Prepayment
againstthe PSPI.

e Property NSW and Place ManagementNSW - Property rental payment.

e Port Authority of NSW - Channel fees received.

e Insurance for NSW - Insurance paymentto and hindsightadjustmentreceived from the TreasuryManaged Fund
(TMF).

e NSW Treasury Corporation - Investment in T-Corp Hourglass facilities and investmentrevenue earned from these
facilities.

e Crown Finance Entity - Interestrevenue earned from the Treasury Banking System.

e Service NSW — Front-line service delivery fees.

e \Various agencies (Including Departmentof Planning and Environment, Office of Environmentand Heritage and
Property NSW) — Transfers of land to/from RMS

¢ DepartmentofFinance, Services and Innovation — Outward transfer of Tow Trucks administration function including
cashbalance as well as various licensing fees received.

e Various agencies (including Sydney Trains, Departmentof Planning and Environmentand the Department of
Justice) - Grants and contributions received.

e Various agencies (including Sydney Water, Infrastructure NSW and UrbanGrowth NSW DevelopmentCorporation) -
Professional services and external works provided/received.

32. Events after the reporting period

No events have occurred after the reporting date that would have a material impacton the financial statements.

End of Audited Fnancial Statements
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